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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

I'would like to present to the shareholders the audited consolidated
results of Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic in
2020 became a matter of global concern and has led to challenges
and changes in the global economic environment. With the launch
of COVID-19 vaccination program, the pandemic has become under
control and the global economic activities have been resuming.

Looking forward, the Group will be able to focus its resources on the
development of the Zhanjiang project and other business segments
of the Group, in particular the sand mining business in Papua New
Guinea where the Group has been granted an exclusive operating
right for constructing and operating a port terminal and conducting
sand mining and export business in the Kikori Delta in the Gulf of
Papua with a total area of 23,300 square kilometers and the Group
has established a comprehensive strategic cooperation with China
Harbour Engineering Company Limited (fE & & T2 ER ST
‘A®)) for carrying out sand mining operation and the planning,
construction and operation of fairway and terminal facilities, the
Board considers that the Disposal can prevent the Group from
incurring further loss from the Properties and provide an immediate
cash flow to the Group for repayment of borrowings and general
working capital to support the future development of the Group.

I would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,
suppliers and business partners for supporting the Group over
the years and contributing to the Group’s healthy development. In
appreciation of your support, we will remain committed to moving our
business forward to achieve even greater success in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$1,013.2 million, compared to
approximately HK$538.0 million for 2019, representing a increase of
approximately HK$475.2 million. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in the sales of electronic products during the year.
The loss attributable to the owners of the Company substantially
decreased to HK$211.9 million, a decrease of HK$889.6 million
from the profit of HK$677.7 million recorded for the year ended 31
December 2019. The decrease was primarily due to a loss on fair
value changes on investment properties incurred of approximately
HK$158.9 million (2019: Gain on fair value changes on investment
properties of HK$1,011.7 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Investment property
Zhanjiang

The Group owns the land use rights of five land parcels located in
Donghai Dao, Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development
Zone, Zhangjiang City, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") with total site area and total planned gross floor area
of approximately 266,000 sg.m. and 1.3 million sg.m. respectively
(the "Smart City Project”). The lands are divided into two portions: the
portion held for sale (non-commercial portion) and the portion held
for investment purpose (including the commercial portion and the car
parking spaces).

According to the valuation report issued by a recognised valuer at
the end of the year, the value of the lands of the Smart City Project
was approximately RMBS5 billion. The lands of the Smart City Project
had been valued approximately the same as the value of the lands
of the Smart City Project at 31 December 2019. The portion of lands
at approximately RMB3.3 billion will be used for residential purpose
which are classified as properties for sale and another portion of lands
at approximately RMB1.7 billion will be used for commercial building
development purpose which are classified as investment properties
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020. Therefore, the fair value loss of approximately RMB7.5 million
of the investment properties were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmED

Beijing

The rental income of leasing the property covers an area of
approximately 16,300 sg.m. at the Rong Ning Yuan Community of No.
60 Guang An Men Nan Jie, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC. The rental
income recorded by this Beijing property was approximately HK$5.5
million (2019: HK$9.0 million) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Trading Business

The Group owns 60% interest in Shenzhen Qianhai Jiameijing
Industrial Company Limited CRYITRI/BZEZFEEXERLE)
which principally engages in the business of trading, importing and
exporting of electronic products. The trading business recorded
revenue of approximately HK$984.7 million (2019: HK$508.8 million).

Financial Business

The revenue of financial business of the Group generated from
securities, futures and options broking business, underwriting
commission, advisory for financial management business and interest
income from securities margin loan portfolio and managed to register
profit. Despite the economic damages brought by the widespread
of Covid-19, both market and turnover increased amid the global
Quantitative Easing policy, the massive stimulus program of the US
government, the continued listing of Chinese giant companies in
Hong Kong attracting investment interests from China and other
regions. Market remained volatile as investors were sensitive to the
development of Sino-American confrontations, the fear of inflation
and the spread of Covid-19 disease. Dow Jones rallied towards new
highs towards the second quarter but Hang Seng Index was still
capped with range trading under 30,000. Market turnover hopefully
expected to be buoyant benefited from more listings of Chinese
companies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

0Oil and gas business

The Group owns 100% of the exploration, exploitation and operation
rights as well as the profit sharing right of Madagascar Oilfield
Block 2101 which is an onshore site with total area of 10,400
square kilometers in the northern part of Madagascar. Pursuant
to the exploration, exploitation and oil and gas production sharing
contract and depending on the rate of liquid petroleum production of
Madagascar Qilfield Block 2101, the Group will share the remaining
petroleum profit after government royalty and recovery of petroleum
costs according to the sharing ratios in the range of 40% to 72.5% as
set out in the profit sharing right.

PROSPECT

After disposing the Beijing Properties, the Group will be able to
focus its resources on the development of the Zhanjiang project and
other business segments of the Group, in particular the sand mining
business in Papua New Guinea where the Group has been granted
an exclusive operating right for constructing and operating a port
terminal and conducting sand mining and export business in the
Kikori Delta in the Gulf of Papua with a total area of 23,300 square
kilometers and the Group has established a comprehensive strategic
cooperation with China Harbour Engineering Company Limited (&
A& TR AR SFEAT) for carrying out sand mining operation
and the planning, construction and operation of fairway and terminal
facilities, the Board considers that the Disposal can prevent the
Group from incurring further loss from the Properties and provide
an immediate cash flow to the Group for repayment of borrowings
and general working capital to support the future development of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmED

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the financial year, the total revenue for the Group was
approximately HK$1,013.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$475.1 million as compared with HK$538.0 million
in 2019. This was mainly due to the increase in sale of electronic
products during the year.

Administration expenses

Administrative expenses decreased to approximately HK$61.3 million
in 2020 from approximately HK$63.9 million in 2019, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 4.0%.

Fair value changes on investment properties

The Company has appointed independent valuation companies to
determine the fair value for the investment properties. Based on the
valuation reports, the Group has recorded losses of approximately
HK$158,920,000 during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
reduction in fair value was mainly in relation to the investment
properties in Beijing. Fair value gain of more than approximately
HK$1,011,747,000 on the investment properties at Zhanjiang was
recorded during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 4 June 2021, the Company entered into the Convertible
Bonds subscription agreement, pursuant to which agreed to
issue, the Convertible Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 bearing interest rate of 2% per annum with maturity
to 2 years from the date of issue. The Conversion Price is HK$0.98
per Conversion Share, assuming the conversion rights attaching to
the Convertible Bonds are exercised in full at the Conversion Price,
a maximum of 20,408,163 Conversion Shares will be allotted and
issued, representing (i) approximately 0.51% of the existing issued
shares of the Company of 4,000,000,000 Shares as at the date of
announcement, and (i) approximately 0.51% of the issued shares of
the Company of 4,020,408,163 Shares as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the Conversion Shares. The issuance of the Convertible
Bonds was completed on 9 July 2021.

Disposal of Beijing Project

On 5 November 2021, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire issued capital of Millhaven
Holdings Limited which held the properties located at Rong Ning
Yuan Community, Beijing (the “Disposal”). The consideration for the
Disposal is HK$338.0 million. The Company intends to apply the net
proceeds from the Disposal for general working capital of the Group
and repayment of outstanding loans.

After the Disposal, the Group has a present intention to focus its
resources on the development of the Zhanjiang project and other
business segments of the Group, in particular the sand mining
business in Papua New Guinea.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmED

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
(excluding the restricted cash) were approximately HK$20.6 million
(2019: approximately HK$20.7 million). The net current assets of the
Group were HK$1.6 billion (2019: HK$1.5 billion), which consisted
of current assets of HK$2.4 billion (2019: HK$2.1 billion) and current
liabilities of approximately HK$835.8 million (2019: HK$568.5 million),
representing a current ratio of 2.88 (2019: 3.70). The Group manages
its capital structure to finance its overall operation and growth by
using different sources of funds. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's
lease liabilities, amount due to a director, borrowings and corporate
bonds amounted to approximately HK$487.2 million (2019: HK$398.2
million). The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020
(defined as total interest-bearing liabilities divided by the Group's total
equity) was 0.13 (2019: 0.11).

CORPORATE BONDS

As at 31 December 2020, the accumulated principal amount of
corporate bonds was HK$29 million bearing interest rate of 7%
per annum with maturity between 2021 to 2025. Such bonds are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method. Imputed interest of approximately HK$2.3 million was
recognised in the profit or loss during the year (2019: HK$2.1 million).
The issuance of the corporate bonds will not result in any dilution on
the shareholding of the existing shareholders of the Group.

EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly to
the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against
RMB. We have not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and considering hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
such need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs consisted mainly of interest expenses
on corporate bonds, borrowings, amounts due to directors and
lease liabilities. The aggregate amount of interest incurred was
approximately HK$32.3 million (2019: HK$30.6 million) for the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020
(2019: nil).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

In 2020, the term loan of HK$250 million were secured by (i) the
guarantee from Guangdong Gangyue Financial Holdings Real Estate
Development Company Limited (B BB SZEEMEREERR
@) ; (ii) the personal guarantee from the Guarantor (Dr. Hui Chi Ming)
and Beijing Yinghe Property Development Limited (1t & =i
EiRERE AR /A B) respectively; and (iii) the charge/pledge to be
granted by several subsidiaries of the Company. On the other hand,
the Group held banking facility from a bank as at 31 December 2020.
The Group's banking facility were secured by guarantees given by
the Group’s bank deposits and the Company. As at 31 December
2020, bank deposits amounting to approximately HK$171.1 million
(31 December 2019: HK$5.3 million) were pledged to secure banking
facility granted to a subsidiary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmED

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAMES AND STOCK
SHORT NAMES

On 16 October 2020, a special resolution in relation to the Change of
Company Name was proposed and duly passed at the special general
meeting of the Company to approve the change of the English name
of the Company from “Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding Group
Limited” to “Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group
Limited” and the Chinese secondary name of the Company has been
changed from "EEA MK EEREBRBRAGE" t0 "EEERK
BEZEREBEBRRLQE". The stock short names of the Company for
trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been changed from
“HK FINANCE INV” to “WISDOM WEALTH" in English and from "&
BERER" to "EEEREXZE" In Chinese with effect on 28 May
2021. The stock code of the Company remains unchanged as “7". The
website address of the Company will be changed from “www.hkfihg.
com” to “"WWRI007.com” with effect from 28 May 2021. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 21 May 2021 and the
circular dated 21 September 2020 relating to the change of company
names and stock short names.

PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Company obtained a term loan facility in an aggregate amount
of HK$250,000,000 for a term of 36 months in 2017. Pursuant to the
terms of the facility agreement, the occurrence of change of control
event constitutes an event of default which the lender may cancel the
facility. The Group is in the process of negotiating the extension of the
aforesaid term loan facility.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 105 staff
(2019: 174) of which 15 were commission based (2019: 20) and
the total related staff cost amounted to HK$32,074,000 (2019:
HK$34,159,000). The Group's long-term success rests primarily on
the total integration of the company core value with the basic staff
interest. In order to attract and retain high caliber staff, the Group
provides competitive salary package and other benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical schemes and bonus. The future
staff costs of the sales will be more directly linked to the performance
of business turnover and profit. The Group maintained organic
overhead expenses to support the basic operation and dynamic
expansion of its business enabling the Group to respond flexibly with
the changes of business environment.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each (31
December 2019: 4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each).

CHANGES OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

With effect from 25 May 2020, Mr. Chow Kin Wing was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company and Mr. Chan
Tsang Mo resigned tendered his resignation as an independent non-
executive director of the Company respectively.

With effect from 16 July 2020, Mr. Chen Mailin and Mr. Hui Ngok
Lun were appointed as executive directors of the Company and Mr.
Chui Say Hoe and Mr. Ren Qian were re-designated from executive
directors of the Company to consultants of the Company respectively.

With effect from 9 October 2020, Mr. Chen Mailin has resigned as an
executive director and managing director.

Mr. Chow Kin Wing has resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 12 October 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmED

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the financial year, the Company has adopted the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction. All Directors of the
Company have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and the Code during the financial year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is aware of the importance that complying with the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and maintaining good
corporate governance standards are important to the effective and
efficient operation of the Company. The Company has, therefore,
adopted and implemented relevant measures to ensure that the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements are complied with and
that a high standard of corporate governance practices is maintained.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”), as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, throughout the accounting
period covered by the interim report except for the deviation from
code provision A.4.2. of the Code which every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. However, according to
Bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allow more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN RELATION TO
GOING CONCERN

As disclosed in the audited consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a net loss of HK$212,917,000 during the year ended
31 December 2020 and, as of that date, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$326,103,000 without considering
properties for sales of approximately HK$1,921,997,000. Nevertheless,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis as the Directors has actively implemented various
measures as listed below to improve the liquidity of the Group:

(1

(2)

Getting new banking facilities

The Company has already received an indicative offer from
a bank in December 2021 to grant a banking facility of
HK$200,000,000 bearing interest at 2.5% over Hong Kong
Interbank Bank Offered Rate for a term of 18 months from
the drawdown date. Such banking facilities will be secured
by the Group’s investment properties located in Zhanjiang,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). The Company is now
waiting for the formal banking facility letter from that bank
and is confident that such banking facility would be granted to
the Company in view of the securities pledged for the banking
facility.

Disposal of the property in Beijing

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 5
November 2021, the Company has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
the property in Beijing for a consideration of HK$338,000,000. As
at the date of this report, the buyer has already paid a deposit of
HK$8,000,000 in accordance with the terms of the agreement.
The transaction is expected to complete in February 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmED

(3) Renewal of existing loans with existing
lenders

The Group is now actively negotiating with two lenders to
renew two existing loans with a total sum of approximately
HK$318,200,000. The Group has got verbal confirmations
from them that they will extend the repayment of outstanding
borrowings by renewing the loan agreements.

The Group has obtained written confirmations from two
directors, Dr. Hui Chi Ming and Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, that they
would not demand repayment of amounts due to them within
next twelve months.

(4) Cost control measures

The Group are implementing various cost control measures to
control the administrative expenses and capital expenditures.

Assuming all the above plans and actions can be completed as
planned, the uncertainty related to the going concern is expected
to be removed. In case there are any temporary cashflow shortfalls
arise, the Group has already obtained written confirmation from the
controlling shareholder, Dr Hui Chi Ming, to provide financial support
to the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. Hui Chi Ming GBS, )P, aged 56, was appointed the Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Dr. Hui received a Doctor Honoris
Causa in Economics and IFES Doctoris Honoris Causa from the
Institute of Far Eastern Studies, The Russian Academy of Sciences in
2002. The Department of Social Sciences of The Russian Academy
of Sciences had also awarded Dr. Hui the scientific degree of Doctor
Honoris Causa in 2005. Dr. Hui had over 10 years of experience in
the investment, exploration and exploitation of oil and gas business.
He has been the chairman of the board of over 20 companies
such as Hoifu Petroleum Group Limited (B2 A HEBRERAT),
Madagascar Southern Petroleum Company Limited (F#ZEhNEr N
7 AEAEEAT) and Madagascar Northern Petroleum Company
Limited (S3ZMMHTN0IEA AHA R F]) . From 2004 to 2010, Dr. Hui
was the chairman and an executive director of Sino Union Energy
Investment Group Limited, which was subsequently re-named as
Yanchang Petroleum International Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (stock code: 346) and engaged in the investment, exploration
and exploitation of oil and gas business. Dr. Hui was a member of the
9th, 10th, 11th and 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is the chairman of the Confucian
Academy of Hong Kong, a standing committee member of the All-
China Federation of Industry & Commerce, the honorable president of
the Beijing Federation of Industry & Commerce, a standing committee
member of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, the president
of Hong Kong Xian Trade Association Limited, the president of the
Hong Kong General Association of International Investment and
the chief president of the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisation. Dr. Hui is also the Honorary Consul in
Hong Kong of the Republic of Madagascar. All these years, Dr. Hui
has been actively participating in promoting poverty alleviation and
charity, and he has been awarded the China Glory Society Medal for
Poverty Alleviation (FREI ¥ =5 2 A B #255) and accredited as China
Top Ten Poverty Alleviation Contributor (2 B+ A& 7T) by the
government of the PRC. In recognition of the outstanding contribution
of Dr. Hui to poverty alleviation, the International Minor Planet Naming
Committee (BIRR/NTEfm$ZEE) approved permanently naming
the minor planet No. 5390 as “Hui Chi Ming Planet”.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EFhEREEER/N

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Neil Bush, aged 66, was appointed the Deputy Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Mr. Bush graduated from Tulane
University with a bachelor’s degree in International Economics
and from the Tulane University Freeman School of Business with
a master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. Bush had over
30 years of experience in domestic and international energy and
real estate business development. He formed oil companies which
explored oil resources in various states in the United States of
America and overseas. Mr. Bush has engaged in various international
business development activities with a focus on the PRC and Middle
East. Since 1975, Mr. Bush has traveled to the PRC over 140 times
and worked with numerous entities on a variety of projects including
real estate development, energy, automobile parts, sheet rock
manufacturing and paint production. From 7 December 2010 to 20
July 2012, Mr. Bush was a non-executive director of China Resources
and Transportation Group Limited, a company of which the shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 269). Since 22 April
2013, Mr. Neil Bush has been serving as the Non-Executive Chairman
on the board of SGX-ST Mainboard-listed SingHaiyi Group Limited, a
Singapore based real estate company. He is also the Chairman of the
Points of Light, a national charitable organisation formed by President
George H.W. Bush in 1989 that promotes citizen service through
volunteerism in communities all across America and increasingly
overseas. Mr. Bush serves as Chairman of the Barbara Bush Houston
Literacy Foundation, and on the boards of the Houston Salvation Army
and the Bush School of Government and Public Service.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xu Jun Jia, aged 32, was appointed as an executive director on 1
January 2016. He graduated from Institute of International Relations
of Moscow University in 2014 with an expert degree. He is currently
the general manager of Siberian Energy Group, Inc. (F5{8 #2588
JREEHE) , the general manager of Far East Oil Group Limited (&
L HEEARAT) and the general manager of Africa Resources
Group Limited GENEREBEBBRAE) . Mr. Xu is currently the
vice president of Hong Kong International Foundation for Poverty
Alleviation (HEEIFRXBE£E), and head of the Youth Committee
of Hong Kong General Association of International Investment (&
BEIFIE B4 E) . In recent years, he has played an active role
in professional investments in a number of deals in various sectors
such as oil and chemical, metal mining and financial securities, as
well as negotiations and decision making in merger and acquisition,
equity participation and controlling deals. As a result, he is fully
equipped with relevant professional knowledge and operating
experiences. Mr. Xu is fluent in English, Russia, Mandarin and
Cantonese. He is very familiar with oil and gas businesses between
Russia and the international market. Mr. Xu is the son of Dr. Hui Chi
Ming, the Chairman of the Company. He has been appointed as an
Administration Manager of the Company since 1 September 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EFhEREEER/N

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Cao Yu, aged 42, was appointed as an executive director on 1
January 2016, and being appointed as the managing director on 1
December 2020. He graduated from CERAM Sophia Antipolis with a
master degree in management. Mr. Cao has been the project manager
for listed companies and he was specialized in the operation and
coordination of the drilling and seismic engineering projects with
famous petroleum companies in China. Meanwhile, he was also
responsible for identifying suitable investors to establish joint venture
company for petroleum exploration projects. He has also worked in
the world’s largest energy efficiency management company and was
responsible for providing energy efficiency strategy in China region for
the group. Besides, Mr. Cao was the analyst in the headquarter of BNP
Paribas in France. His main duty was to provide financial and strategic
advice in the area of energy technology and he was responsible for
the merger and acquisition activities as well as financial planning
service. Mr. Cao has been engaged in management and analytical
work for many years and possesses the appropriate and professional
experience. He has been the manager of the development
department of the Company since September 2012.

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, aged 57. Mr. Lam is the founder of the Group.
He has extensive experience in the securities, futures, options, fund
management and financial advisory industry. His primarily focus
is to further develop the financial business in the Group. He is the
Chairman, Executive Director and Managing Director of Asia Tele-Net
and Technology Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the
brother of Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, aged 62. He is a co-founder of the Group and is
in charge of the stockbroking, futures and options broking, securities
margin financing business, fund management and financial advisory
business. Mr. Nam has extensive experience in the securities, futures
and options, securities margin financing, fund management and
financial advisory industry. Mr. Nam is also the Deputy Chairman
and Executive Director of Asia Tele-Net and Technology Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the brother of Mr. Lam Kwok Hing.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Hui Ngok Lun, aged 25, graduated from Columbia University
in the United States with a master’s degree in Enterprise Risk
Management. Mr. Hui is currently the Managing Director of Longyuan
Xintiandi Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd., the General Manager of
African Union Resources Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., and
the General Manager of Siberian Petroleum Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Hui
is also a Member of the Henan Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Federation, the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong
Volunteers Federation Foundation, the Deputy Director of Hong Kong
International Poverty Alleviation Foundation, and the Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong General Association of International Investment Youth
Association.

Mr. Hui has overseen and coordinated various oil and gas resources
projects, in addition to the risk management in respect of investment,
development and operation of copper and gold mine resources
projects. Mr. Hui is also actively involved in the investment decision-
making and risk management of diversified large-scale real estate
comprehensive development and operation projects. With his
expertise in project investment and management, Mr. Hui has
participated in the decision-making, operation and management
of several major project investments, mergers and acquisitions.
With respect to financial innovation, Mr. Hui has also added and
commenced new businesses in the financial and securities segments
of the Hong Kong Finance Investment Group.

Mr. Hui is the son of Dr. Hui Chi Ming, the Chairman of the Company,
and the younger brother of Mr. Xu Jun Jia, an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Hui has been appointed by the Company as the Chief
Risk Officer of the Hong Kong Finance Investment Group since 11
September 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EFhEREEER/N

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ngan Kam Biu Stanford, aged 43, holds a Master degree of Arts
in Quantitative Analysis for Business and a degree of Bachelor of
Accounting and Finance with Honours. He is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ngan has
over 15 years of experience in corporate management and finance,
accounting and company secretarial practice. He was a Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of Code Agriculture (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 8153) previously.

Mr. Tam Chak Chi, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 19 August 2019. He holds a bachelor’s degree
of commerce from the University of Toronto. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a member of each
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Global Management Accountant. Mr. Tam has more than
15 years of experience in providing accounting, auditing and financial
services and has served various senior positions at various private
and listed companies. Mr. Tam is currently an executive Director of My
Heart Bodibra Group Limited (stock code: 8297), an independent non-
executive director of Wealth Glory Holdings Limited (stock code: 8269)
and AL Group Limited (stock code: 8360), which are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ma Kin Ling, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 10 May 2019. He is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Xinyang Maojian Group Limited
(stock code: 362), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and the independent non-executive director of SunCorp
Technologies Limited (stock code: 1063), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy and Law. Prior to the joining
of the Group, he worked in reputable international accounting firms
and has over 10 years' experience in auditing and accounting.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing, aged 51, is the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary. He is responsible for the financial and secretarial
affairs of the Group. Mr. Fu joined the Company in December 2012.
He holds a bachelor degree in science with major in accounting of
Bemidji State University, USA and is a member of American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 25 years of experience in
auditing and accounting field.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Lap Kwan, aged 47, is the Director of Karl-Thomson
Securities Company Limited and is responsible for the daily operations
and implementation of the internal control procedures of the
Kwun Tong branch. He holds a Bachelor of Business (Banking and
Finance) degree from University of South Australia. He has extensive
experience in the securities, futures and options industry. He joined
the Group in July 1997.

Mr. Sung Wing Yiu, aged 64, is the Director of Karl-Thomson Securities
Company Limited. He is responsible for the management and
development of internet trading services, securities, futures and
other derivatives business of the Group. He holds a Bachelor of
Social Science degree in Government & Public Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Sung
has extensive experience in the securities and futures industry and
held senior positions in regional financial institutions in Hong Kong. He
joined the Group in February 2001.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHRS

The Directors would like to present to shareholders their annual report
("Annual Report”) and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are (1) the trading of electronic products; (2) the
provision of financial services and (3) property investment. Particulars
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 18 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review, financial performance and future
development of the Group'’s business are set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section from pages 7 to 18.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Years Financial
Summary on pages 219 to 220 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business risks,
capital risks and financial risks that may have different levels of impact
on the Group's financial performance, operations, business as well as
future prospects.

The business risk faced by the Group is set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report and the capital risk and financial risk
are set out in Note 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We are attentive to consumption of natural resources and reduction
of pollution during the course of managing our businesses. It is our
goal to minimize our environmental impacts through recycling of
materials, encouragement of resources savings and reduce wastes.
The Group is committed to ensure our compliance with relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations. For further details on
performance of the Group on environmental aspects during the Year,
please refer to our Environmental, Social and Governance Report
which will be published within one month.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group requires operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
to comply with the relevant laws and regulations in the territories in
which we operate. During the Year, the Board was not informed of any
events on violation with laws and regulations.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
legal risks possibly faced by its Directors, Supervisors and senior
management during their duty performances.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group's business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. During
the year, there were no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the
Group. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication
and maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholder.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHRS

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 70 to 72 of the Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years ended 31 December 2016, 2017, 2018,
2019 and 2020 is set out on page 219 of the Annual Report.

FIXED ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in the fixed assets and investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible notes as disclosed in notes 37 to the financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders.

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

—the largest supplier 22%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate 67%
Sales

— the largest customer 27%
—five largest customers in aggregate 87%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers and its five largest customers.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHRS

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Chi Ming G.8.S,, 1P (Chairman)

Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. XU Jun Jia

Mr. CAO Yu

Mr. LAM Kwok Hing MH., 1P

Mr. NAM Kwok Lun

Mr. Chen Mailin (@appointed on 16 July 2020,
resigned on 9 October 2020)

Mr. Hui Ngok Lun (appointed on 16 July 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford

Mr. CHAN Tsang Mo (resigned on 25 May 2020)

Mr. MA Kin Ling

Mr. TAM Chak Chi

Mr. Chow Kin Wing (appointed on 25 May 2020,
resigned on 12 October 2020)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from all
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Bye-laws 99 and 102 of the Company's Bye-
laws, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation (save any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) at each annual general meeting and any additional
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting. Therefore, Messrs. Hui Ngok Lun, Ngan
Kam Biu, Stanford, Tam Chak Chi and Ma Kin Ling retire from office
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment for a term of three years until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by the Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company or in accordance with the
terms set out in the respective letters of appointment. Each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.

The Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting does not have a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical information of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 25 of the
Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a three-year term which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation. These service
contracts shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by
either party with not less than three months’ prior written notice.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration committee of the Board considers and
recommends to the Board the remuneration of all Directors is subject
to regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to ensure that
the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.
Details of the Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHRS

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company was entered or existed.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (with the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"), as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company
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Dr. Hui Chi Ming 6B, 1P (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 2,139,486,542 53.49%
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Note 1:  These shares included 277,926,000 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance
Investment Limited, 541,051,143 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance
Equity Management Limited Shares, 842,734,284 Shares held by Hong
Kong Finance Equity Investment Limited and 477,775,115 Shares held by
Hong Kong Finance Equity Holding Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited,
Hong Kong Finance Equity Management Limited, Hong Kong Finance
Equity Investment Limited and Hong Kong Finance Equity Holding Limited
are directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming G.B.S., J.P.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

2.

Ordinary shares in subsidiaries which are
wholly-owned

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors of the Company,
chief executive or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year
was the Company, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiaries of
its ultimate holding company a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

@)

During the year, the Group received commission income and
other securities dealing income from securities and futures
dealing of approximately HK$49,000 (2019: HK$16,000) from
director Mr. Nam Kwok Lun (2019: a director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun).
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ESEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
(Continuedq)

(b)y During the year, the Group received commission income
and other income from securities dealing of approximately
HK$17,000 (2019: HK$7,000) from Asia Tele-Net, in which two
directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, have
controlling interests.

(c) At 31 December 2020, a director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, advanced
approximately HK$57,851,000 (2019: HK$57,897,000) to
the Group. During the year, the Group paid finance costs of
HK$2,614,000 (2019: HK$3,237,000) to a director, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun.

(d) At 31 December 2020, a director, Dr. Hui Chi Ming G.BS., J.P,
advanced approximately HK$85,727,000 (2019: HK$57,395,000)
to the Group. It is unsecured, repayable on demand and non-
interest bearing.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 May 2013, the Group leased from Gahood Holding Company
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Dr. Hui, the office space located
at Unit 9 (portion) and Units 10-12, 19th Floor, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong for an initial term of two years at a monthly rent of
HK$180,000. Such agreement was renewed in May 2015 and May
2017 respectively to extend the tenancy period for two years expiring
on 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2019 respectively at a monthly rent of
HK$200,000 and HK$210,000 respectively. The tenancy agreement
was further renewed and extended with the tenancy period expiring
on 30 November 2020 and the monthly rent was adjusted to
HK$210,000 until to 31 March 2021. The new tenancy agreement shall
be one year commencing from 1 April 2021 and expiring on 31 March
2022, monthly rent remain unchanged.

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?

b)) RAEAFER AEERBSEE S D MH
B (ML ESERABE R EREERER
BHZESIER) ARSI A R E MU A
#917,000% 7T (ZZ—HF : 7,000587T) ©

© RITEBE-EBF+-A=+—H EFEZR

AL BAEBBARLS7,851,00087T (ZF

— 4 1 57,897,000 7T) c FR > AEEM

ERERMIE I E 2,614,000 7T
—ZT—H 4 : 3,237,000 7T) °

d MIBEZIE2EF+ZA=+—B EFHE
Rt oS, IPAANEBEBR ’]85727000
Bt (CE—N5F 1 57,395,000 7T) c3%2%
BRABIBF REREERTR

FHERERS

N _E-——FRB=t+—H KAEBRZLEE
EAERAE GFEIT2EHENAR) HESE
FIRFERIEF168-2005% F A LIBERBARED
1B5E9%% (2049)) RBI0E 123 M AEEN 45
FHAME > BHA180,0008 7T c sZ %2 7
B@:%—ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ&:ﬁ—tiﬁﬁﬁééa &
EIEEME DR _E—tERB=+—
HRZZE—hEHEB= + HEm > B35
#200,00078 7 F2210,00058 75 - TH E 7R E —
TEEBEREH AR 25+ —HB=+
HEm BE®HAEA210,0008 Tt BEE-T
T—FZAZt+-HLk -FHEHEEE_ZT
_—FHA—HERH—F IR IZZTZ
=B=+—HEm BREFFE-

BREEREEBFRAR



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(Continueq)

Five of these agreements were arm’s length transactions which were
valued by an independent valuer and in the usual and ordinary course
of business of the Company and on normal commercial terms which
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The annual cap amount for each of the financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 are HK$2,520,000,
HK$2,520,000, HK$2,520,000 and HK$2,520,000 respectively. The total
amount of the transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
HK$2,520,000 (2019: HK$2,520,000).

Gahood is indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive
Director of the Company. Therefore, Gahood is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

According the Tenancy Agreements between Gahood and Shiny
Future constitutes continuing connected transactions for both
Gahood and Shiny Future under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.76 (1) of the Listing Rules, such Extended
Tenancy Agreement is fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
need to be disclosed as a connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of significance
to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders R E_ZE£+_B=+—H ' BELAAT®
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO  FEH RHIEKAIEIEEEZ FERBELM
shows that the following shareholder had notified the Company of  Frzd$t > FHIRE BB A AT FFEAR XA T
relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company. BEITR A HEER

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 MZAEXRFSKREE0.10ETEERZ

each of the Company RE
Percentage of
Number of the share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company
FRs 2817 AT
IR 515 EERkyE RRABTSEE
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 541,051,143 13.53%
Management Limited (Note 1)
SETMBEEEBRAR (Wat1) BmEBA
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 841,780,284 21.04%
Investment Limited (Note 1)
BEETHMRERERRAR Hat1) BamEAA
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 477,775,115 11.94%
Holding Limited (Note 1)
EEERREERBIRAR (Wat1) BEHEAA
Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited Beneficial owner 277,926,000 6.95%
(Note 1)
EEEMBERERLE (W5t1) EmEAA
Wisdom On Holdings Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 954,000 0.02%
Wisdom On Holdings Limited (##5£7) EmEE A

Note 1. The entire issued share capital are directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui #5327 2B TRARFEHIETEENMZEEEHEE -
Chi Ming.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no person (other than the Directors of the
Company whose interests are set out under the heading “Directors’
Interests in Shares” above) had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in business, apart from the
business of the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date
of this Annual Report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefits scheme are set out in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules during the year. The details of the Group's
compliance with the Code is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report from pages 39 to 61 of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

The Environment, Social and Governance Report will be published
within one month.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to the Company to re-appoint Elite Partners CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Dr. Hui Chi Ming, 685, P
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 13 December 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital to
the success of the Group and sustains development of the Group. The
Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and practices with an emphasis on integrity, transparency
and independence. The board of directors (the “Board”) believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year of 2020, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), save for the following:

1. The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the
Company is not subject to retirement by rotation pursuant to
Byelaw 99 of the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure they continue to meet the requirements of the Code during
the year ended 31 December 2020. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are summarised in this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transaction.

To the specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEELHRS

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises seven
executive Directors, namely, Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.8.5., P, Mr. Neil Bush,
Mr. Cao Yu, Mr. Xu Jun Jia, Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, MH., 1R, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun and Mr. Hui Ngok Lun; and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Ngan Kam Biu, Stanford, Mr. Tam Chak Chi and
Mr. Ma Kin Ling. Biographical details, which include relationships
among members of the Board, are provided in the “Directors and
Senior Management Profiles” section of the Annual Report. The
composition of the Board is well balanced with the Directors having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group.
The Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors
bring a variety of experience and expertise to the Company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of management while day-to-day
management of the Group is delegated to the management team
of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking the Board is
responsible for:

o Formulating the Group's long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

o Approval of interim and year end dividend

o Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
o Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

o Monitoring the performance of the management

o Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

o Developing and reviewing the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD (Continued)
Responsibilities (Continuead)

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group's businesses to the Executive Directors, senior management
and certain specific responsibilities to the Board committees. The
Board is committed to making decisions in the best interests of both
the Company and its shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true and
fair view of the Group's consolidated financial position in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The statement by the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out on pages 67 to 69 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and service of the Company Secretary to
ensure Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Composition
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience

necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.
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EEELHRS

THE BOARD (Continued)

Composition (Continuead)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised ten
members, including seven Executive Directors and three Independent

Non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Chi Ming GBS, 1P (Chairman)
Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman)
Dr. CHUI Say Hoe (Managing Director) (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. REN Qian (resigned on 16 July 2019)
Mr. XU Jun Jia
Mr. CAO Yu (Managing Director, appointed on 1 December 2019)

Mr. LAM Kwok Hing MH., JP

Mr. NAM Kwok Lun

Mr. Chen Mailin (appointed on 16 July 2020,
resigned on 9 October 2020)

Mr. Hui Ngok Lun (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford

Mr. CHAN Tsang Mo (resigned on 25 May 2020)

Mr. MA Kin Ling (appointed on 10 May 2019)

Mr. TAM Chak Chi (appointed on 19 August 2019)

Mr. Chow Kin Wing (appointed on 25 May 2020,
resigned on 12 October 2020)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 25.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continuead)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board complied
with the Rules 3.10 and 3.10 (A) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors,
one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related finance
management expertise and the independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board. However, the proportion
of the INED constitutes a deviation from the Rules 3.10 (A).

Mr. Ngan Kam Biu standford remained as independent Non-Executive
Directors from 11 June 2018. Following on the resignation of Chen
Wei-Ming Eric, Mr. Yim Kai Pung and Mr. Ng Chi Kin David on 25
February, 10 May and 19 August 2019 respectively as independent
Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Chan Tsang Mo, Mr. Ma Kin Ling and
Mr. Tam Chak Chi subsequently appointed as an independent Non-
Executive Directors on the same days respectively. Mr. Chan Tsang Mo
resigned on 25 May 2020 at last.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term of three years. They are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out within Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continuead)

The Bye-laws of the Company requires that one-third (if the number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) of the Directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire by rotation each year. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election and those of the other Directors who have
been longest in office since their election or re-election. A retiring
Director is eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general meeting
of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting and be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed
pursuant to the aforesaid Bye-law shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation.

Under the code provisions A.4.2. of the Code, every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. However, according to
Bye-Laws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. This constitutes a deviation from
code provision A.4.2. of the Code. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow
more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings and General Meeting

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 13 Board meetings and
one annual general meeting ("AGM") was held with details of the

Directors’ attendance set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
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General
Board Meeting
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Executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Chi Ming 6.8, 1P. (Chairman)

Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman)

Dr. CHUI Say Hoe (Managing Director)
(resigned on 16 July 2020)

Mr. REN Qian (resigned on 16 July 2020)

Mr. XU Jun lia
Mr. CAO Yu (Managing Director,
appointed on 1 December 2020)
Mr. LAM Kwok Hing mH., P
Mr. NAM Kwok Lun
Mr. Chen Mailin
(appointed on 16 July 2020,
resigned on 9 October 2020)
Mr. Hui Ngok Lun (appointed on 16 July 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford
Mr. CHAN Tsang Mo
(resigned on 25 May 2020)
Mr. MA Kin Ling
(appointed on 10 May 2019)
Mr. TAM Chak Chi
(appointed on 19 August 2019)

Mr. Chow Kin Wing (appointed on 25 May 2020,

resigned on 12 October 2020)

*  The AGM was held before appointment.
+  The AGM was held after resignation.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive introduction
package covering the summary of the responsibilities and liabilities
of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the Company’s
constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued
by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the Directors with written materials, as
well as organizes seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.

During the year of 2020, there were one in-house seminars conducted
covering the topics of director’s duties under Appendix 10 and
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. All Directors attended the seminars.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, each of the newly appointed

Directors participated in the director’s induction training conducted
by the lawyer.
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Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer are held separately by two individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility. The
Chairman is responsible for overseeing the function of the Board
and formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Managing Director is responsible for managing the Group's business
and overall operations. The day-to-day running of the Company is
delegated to the management with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the business.

The Chairman shall ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders for the wellbeing and success of
the Company.

To enhance the effectiveness of the management of the Company,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee to oversee corresponding aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company have defined written
terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on August 2000 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term of
reference, which describes the authority and duties of the Committee,
as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The written terms
of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee were adopted on August 2000 and revised on 1 March
2012 to conform to the provisions of the Code, a copy of which is
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange on 2
March 2012.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

o to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the audit fees and the terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of their resignation or
dismissal,

o to monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and to discuss with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences,

o to monitor integrity of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, annual report, accounts and the half-year report,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

o to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; and

o to review compliance with regulatory and legal requirements by
the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times each year. In 2020,
the Audit Committee held 5 meetings which include considering the
annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2019 and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended
30 June 2020, discussing with the Company’s auditor on the existing
internal control and the re-appointment of the external auditor. The
Audit Committee also provides in important link between the Board
and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within the scope of
its terms of reference and keeps under review the independence and
objectivity of the auditors.

Subsequent to the financial year end, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and recommended
them to the Board for approval.

There were five meetings held during the year, details of attendance
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are set out below: FIa0F
Number of meetings BERH 5
Audit Committee members: EZEEENE
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (Appointed on 19 August 2019) BEZEE (RIZE—NAENB+AHEZD 5/5
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (EEZLZETF/E)
Mr. Ma Kin Ling (Appointed on 10 May 2019) ERELRE W_E—NERB+RHEZMD 5/5
Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford ekl i e 5/5
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 27 March 2012 and is composed of
one executive director and two independent non-executive directors,
namely Dr. Hui Chi Ming, c.B.s., 1. (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Tam Chak Chi and Mr. Ma Kin Ling.

In order to comply with the Code, the Board adopted terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2012 and the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on 28 March 2012.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy; to identify and nominate qualified
individuals for appointment as additional directors or to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise, and to make recommendations to
the Board on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. According to the Board
diversity policy, the Board takes into account various elements
of diversity including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and
educational background, skills, professional knowledge and industry
experience in determining the appointment and reappointment of the
Directors and proposed candidates. All Directors appointments are
based on meritocracy and due regard is given to the Board's diversity
to ensure the Company can obtain the benefits of such diversity. The
nomination committee is responsible for the monitoring and review of
the policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continuead)

During the year, the nomination committee reviewed the composition
of the Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee
confirmed that the existing Board was appropriately structured and
no change was required.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once per year
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according to its terms of reference. Four Nomination Committee ‘D EELRIT—RNGFH - IRLEE T EE@EEW%%
meetings were held during the year, details of attendance are setout  fTPUR &% > HEHBEHIAN T ©
below:
Number of meetings BERH 4
Nomination Committee members: RLZEENE
Dr. HUI Chi Ming, 6.85., 1P 8518, 6Bs, IP 4/4
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) ((E2ZEEL/E)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (Appointed on 19 August 2019) EBEZIEE (WIE-—NENB+NLHEZD 4/4
Mr. Ma Kin Ling (Appointed on 10 May 2019) ERERE MZTE—NEFHRA+THEZD 4/4

During the year, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company and the retirement and re-appointment arrangement of the
Directors in the Company's forthcoming annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28
July 2005 with terms of reference substantially the same as those
contained in code provision B.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code. The written terms of reference which describe the authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee were adopted on 28 July
2005 and revised on 1 March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange. A majority of the members of the Remuneration
Ccommittee is Independent Non-executive Directors and members of
the Committee are listed as below.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

In accordance with the code provision B.1.2 (c)(ii) of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Remuneration Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the
following duties:

o to determine the policy for the remuneration of executive
directors, assessing performance of executive directors and
approving the terms of executive directors’ service contracts;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration and to place recommendations before the Board
concerning the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to
the Directors from time to time;

o to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

o to performs an advisory role to the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management, with
the Board retaining the final authority to approve executive
directors’ and senior management’s remuneration;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration on
independent non-executive directors;

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?

EFELREY (@
HINEEE (&

RIFEEERTR Z T RMESIB.1.2(c)(ii) > #7 BN
ZECEERNERTEZEINRTEZRSR
EEAEBNFNTE - FNEZEEZTRRER
= OEREHFEKT - EFFMZFERER
EAEERSEMBAUNERBERREAKRE
B2 B o

HNEEETEEEUTHE

o HIFTRITEFEHFMBER FTERITESEHN
RERMERTESRB SRR

s HAANTEHEEFKSREEAENERE
FMEB R R RE RLRILIERMEZEA
ERNEFURGTHMER nEFERH

BE-ZEGTRENETEFZAVEHMN
K/SAEm ARODEESIRERES

s HAEEFGIUZEEFHKERMAE
W Rt ESHREEASBIFHN

s FRAEFENREKRAEFTEREHN

TEERSHREEAENFHFNGE BE

EMRATEERSREEA SN
BRERBHOEAE

e WMBIUFRITESNFHFNSTERNESTSIE
T/\,%'\Ea

BREEREEBFRAR



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

o to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive, and

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment
is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The overriding objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that
the Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high-calibre
team which is essential to the success of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once each year.
During the year, four meetings were held to consider and approve the

remuneration of all Directors and senior management.

Four Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year,
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details of attendance are set out below: FIEAE -
Number of meetings BERH 4
Remuneration Committee members: FMEZEENE
Mr. Ma Kin Ling (Appointed on 10 May 2019) ERERE (WZE—NFAA+HEZD 4/4
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) FWNZE 5 F/E)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (Appointed on 19 August 2019) BEZAE (RI2E—NAFN\B+NLBHEZD 4/4
Mr. Hui Ngok Lun (Appointed on 16 July 2020) FrEBLE W2 IEF LA +HNHEZD 2/4
During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed REIBEEE  FWEZESEERARATZRA
the existing remuneration policies of the Company. FrE R o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i)  To develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i) To review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(iv)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Group; and

(v)  To review the Group’s compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board approved the terms of reference of the
Board and the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, the
shareholder communication policy, shareholder enquiry procedures
and special request procedures.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Group, Elite Partners CPA

Limited, is set out as follow:

Services Rendered

EEERRS

=B EmRYEN =
BE_Z_TFE+-B=t+-—HILFE B
JERAEENE LU T EEE SR
FERATZMERIMT :

Fees paid/payable

Friz (it AR 7% Bt EAER
HK$'000

TFHET
Audit services EEARTS 1,600
Other assurance services HA# 5 RS 420

The audit committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company to the Company’s external
auditors for annual audit services is reasonable. There has been no
major disagreement between the auditors and the management of
the Company during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok Ewing, the secretary of the Company whose
biography details are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profiles” in this Annual Report, confirmed that he
had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has appropriate directors and officers liability Insurance
in place for its Directors and senior management, in order to
safeguard them from any legal and compensation liabilities arising in
the course of discharging their duties.
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibilities for:

(i) overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and

(i) selecting suitable accounting policies and applying the selected
accounting policies consistently with the support of reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates.

The statement by auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 62 to 69 of the
Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external advisor
of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continueq)

The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk or
allocate to different location or product or market; and

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the Group
and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The risk
management and internal control system are design to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or 0ss.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has engaged an
external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function to
ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group. There is no significant deficiency
and weakness on the internal control system has been identified by
the external advisory firm for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
risk management and internal control system and procedures of the
Group, covering all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions were
reasonably effective and adequate.

EEERRS

R EERAERER ()

EEBEEZEEA KB RN - RE-HER
ETERNIIBRABREFL B EERBER
PRy RBERE AEBRBEZERRERR
B3 % 5T (L AR R R o 3 7 E AR RE R BR
WERIERF - HREEREERESRFTEE
REANRZEAR MBERBREERKE
mr

— REBRREBREE AEEEMRREENR
REITE LR EERNFE ;

- HEEER:
HBA/\}

BEEHREHAER UER

- RBESERSE: DBAREZE> D
iTHiHJEZJZEDuZZFE%,

- BRRER RE=-SEBMmARKEE-

Rt RBHRABES RASERBEERMZ
MzEzBERRRE THRERMZFRAREN
WAFEE RtEREERANEIEFNRFES
HEEE MIFERAREENAEFERNER B
EHERRERANBREHSEBIFEHR

o

BE_T_THFE+_RA=t+—HLFE K&
HE%%%%@W@TK#W%%&%b i
REEERRBREERANEERRKZENMER
ME-BE_FT_TF+_RB=+—HILFE>
BB BR S A B] R B IR A BB R R F A AR
BARERE KR E

EXERRBEZTTF+A=+—H
LEE FEBREVH EBRERIEREF
BEEREHNSFEREAREERENEREER
REEERI R KB EERA VIR EH -

Annual Report 2020 ¢« —Z_F4FFIR

57



58

Corporate Governance Report
EEELHRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

An annual general meeting shall be held in every year. General
meetings which are not annual general meetings are known as special
general meetings ("SGM") as referred to in the procedures described
below. These procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the Company,
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) and
applicable legislation and regulations.

Convening of SGM on requisition of shareholders

In accordance with the Companies Act registered Shareholder(s)
holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit of the requisition shall have the
right to submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be convened
by the Board.

The written requisition (i) must state the purposes(s) of the meeting,
and (i) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
Company's registered office in Bermuda, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. To
ensure that the requisition is received by the Company at the earliest
opportunity, the requisitionists are urged to deposit also a copy of
the signed requisition at the Company's principal place of business in
Hong Kong (for the attention of the board of directors or the company
secretary).

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene an SGM within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) (or any
of them representing more than one-half of their total voting rights)
may himself/themselves convene an SGM, which must be held within
3 months of the date of deposit of the requisition. The SGM must be
convened by the requisitionist(s) in the same manner as nearly as
possible as that in which SGM is to be convened by the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward proposals at general meetings

In accordance with Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, the
registered Shareholders are entitled to putting forward a proposal at a
general meeting if:

(@ they represent not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of the Company as at the date of the deposit of the
requisition; or

(b)  there are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolutions is duly signed by the
registered Shareholder(s) concerned, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company.

Upon receipt of a valid written requisition, the Company shall take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
Shareholders concerned shall be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company'’s branch share registrar, Tricor standard Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post, by facsimiles
or by email, together with his/her contact details, such as postal
address, email or fax, addressing to the head office of the Company at
the following address or facsimile number or via email:

Address: Units 1910-12, 19/F China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587-7807

Email: pat@wwri007.com
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EEELHRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward enquiries to the Board (Continued)

All enquiries shall be collected by the Company Secretary who
shall report to the Executive Directors periodically on the enquiries
collected. The Executive Directors shall review the enquiries and
assign different kinds of enquiries to appropriate division head/
manager for answering. After receiving the answers of all enquiries
from the relevant division head/manager, the Company Secretary will
collect the answers for the Executive Directors’ review and approval.
The Company Secretary shall then be authorized by the Executive
Directors to reply all enquiries in writing.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to
those with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In
addition, questions received from the general public and individual
shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases great care is taken to
ensure that no price-sensitive information is disclosed selectively.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No significant changes to the Company’s constitutional documents
were made during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board is responsible for ensuring shareholder communications
are adequate and appropriate and based on transparency and
sound corporate governance principles. The Company adopted a
Shareholders Communication Policy on 1 March 2012 which aims
to present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of our
financial position and operational status by providing shareholders
and other stakeholders with information in a timely and transparent
manner. The Company will communicate to shareholders through
written information and electronic communication as follows:

Annual and interim reports

o Disclosures made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

o Notice and circular of general meetings

o Annual general meeting, where the external auditor is available
to answer questions about the audit

o Corporate website: WWRIO07.com

o Direct enquiry sent to the Company
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 TR S

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES
INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN
AS HONG KONG FINANCE INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP
LIMITED)

(incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wisdom
Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group Limited (formerly
known as Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding Group Limited)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 70 to 218, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$212,917,000 during the year ended 31 December 2020 and, as
of that date, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$326,103,000 without considering properties for sales of
approximately HK$1,921,997,000. For further details, please refer to
Note 3.1 in the consolidated financial statements. As set out in Note
3.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group will have sufficient funds to meet
its financial obligations for at least the next twelve months from the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, based
on management’s judgements on, including but not limited to, the
needs of working capital and granting of new bank facilities. As those
events or conditions as stated in Note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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B2 TR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FREZER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RBARBZEENLIREBERMPVEXHE > B4 H
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated R IKMBZEAHB G SR EREEAEEN
financial statements of the current period. These matters were HH SLEEEIRERMPEZEREEHHER
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial RRFHILZEMRZFNE R ETRIE > KM
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, andwe A EZHELEEBRHEBNER - BRAERFE
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In additionto K& X EAFRERERZRFAAEFEIN > HFAE
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going B E FXFrillEBEARERMPARS Ptm0E
Concern section, we have determined the matters described belowto  EEiZEIE

the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter
FREIZEE

How the matter was address in our audit
RMETEZENAEIEZEE

Valuation of investment properties
BREMEMLE

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties measured
at fair value amounted to approximately HK$2,368,672,000
as at 31 December 2020. The fair value was determined by
management with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer (the “valuer”) engaged by the
Group.

AR EMBERRWA20MBE R _E_FF+
B=1+—H>» BEEEERAFTEFENREVERY
2,368,672,0008 L Z AT EITHEEREL2E S£EE
BERVE I 2 EED (TMGERM)) EITHEETMEE

The valuation of investment properties involved significant
judgements and estimates, which mainly included the
determination of valuation techniques and the selection of
different inputs in the models.
REMEGBEIRERAG G T ECEEEHER
EREES RN R A B

Considering the above mentioned significance of judgement,
estimates and the financial impacts of the valuation, we
considered the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matters.

N EMAE RSN EE RMEENMBEE BME
KREVMELERIF—BMREZEE.

Our major procedures to address the valuation of
investment properties included the following:
EPEBREYELENTIEREFERFUTEE

o We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer.
e EMBFMLEEMMNER BB I REEH%E -

o We communicated with the Group's management
about the valuation techniques adopted by
the valuer, and assessed the relevance and
reasonableness of valuation technigues used by the
valuer.

o BME SEEBEENGEMMRANGERS
EET AR ER TR A EE S A 4E
Bk Sa=gEiia

o We evaluated the appropriateness of judgements
and assumptions made by the valuer, in particular
the comparable properties and discount rate.

o KPS h M ERMEEF B R ERRNEE S L
HEO BB ERITIREK.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FREZEIE

Independent Auditor’s Report

L NVR S I

RBERER (@)

How the matter was address in our audit
R ETEZENAEIEZEE

Assessment of the net realisable values of properties
for sale
e EMEZEFFE

As disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had properties for sale (“PFS”) of
approximately of HK$1,921,997,000 as at 31 December 2020.
The Group's assessment of the carrying amounts of PFS, being
the lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV"), takes into
account the fair value of the PFS and costs necessary to make
the sale.
UG EHBRRMNE2/IFMEE EEENR-ZZE
+ZA=1+—BNEEYE (FEMWZE]) 19%41,921,997,000
Broe BEBFGFEYENREE BV AR A 7 FE
(MIEIREE) MEFPHNRES) B FEREFEWENL
TEBEITHEMEIA A

The management of the Group determines the fair value of the
PFS with reference to valuation performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer (“valuer”) engaged by the Group.
EEREEEEEREYENRTER 2% B£EZ
BB EESEEGE (MHE) ETHEHEMEE

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the
PFS and after taking into consideration the fair value of the
properties for sale and costs necessary to make the sale, no
write-down of properties for sale was considered necessary
for the year ended 31 December 2020.
REEEEHGEEMETEINFEEHNME > TEEE
FEMENRTFERETHEMBNMARE  BRMBAR
HE_Z - ZEF+ A=+ HIEFEZEMATEY
Ep

Considering the above mentioned significance, estimates
and the financial impacts of the valuation, we considered the
assessment of the NRV of PFS as a key audit matters.
ENTMEZN G RGEENTBEEE BAETHES
MEZ PSR FERIF—BRAEEZEER.

Our major procedures to address the assessment of the
NRV of the PFS included the following:
RMEEGFEYENITSREZFENENTIERFBEU
TEIE:

o We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer.
e EMBFMLIEERMMNERE BE I REEHE -

o We communicated with the Group’s management
about the valuation techniques adopted by
the valuer, and assessed the relevance and
reasonableness of valuation techniques used by the
valuer.

J KM BSEEEEEMNGEMMRANGEES
EEIT BB ST A E T R R E S A B8
ARSI

o We evaluated the appropriateness of judgements
and assumptions made by the valuer, in particular
the comparable properties and discount rate.

o BRMEFHEEMER B RERNEENE L
HEO BB ERITIREK.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Leung Man Kin with Practising Certificate
number P07174.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor

8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

13 December 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
rafEmMEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

2020 2019
—EEHE “Z2—AF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b 55 F#ET FET
Revenue W 7 1,013,168 538,006
Cost of sales HERAK (980,513) (509,163)
Gross profit Eil 32,655 28,843
Other income Hah A 8 8,604 1,162
Other gains or losses, net H e SRS 1R 2R 9 (36,063) (11,219)
Fair value changes on investment LEMEANTEEE
properties (158,920) 1,011,747
Impairment losses of financial assets REENAECEMEEZ
at amortised cost, net B IEFEE 11 (872) (4,470)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (3,109) (1,102)
Administrative expenses THER (61,319) (63,893)
Finance costs M ER 12 (32,322) (30,632)
(Loss)/profit before taxation FRIRAT (B548) @A (251,346) 930,436
Taxation 18 13 38,429 (252,953)
(Loss)/profit for the year FRN (F8) aF 14 (212,917) 677,483
WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HE&ERIGEZREBERAR



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
relEmkEMEEHWNGER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EEHE “Z2—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) Ea2mEUE A (2 H)
ltem that may be reclassified HEEEMPEERGE 2
subsequently to profit or loss: ER:
Exchange differences arising on REBINEFE
translation of financial statements MHBBRERMELZ
of foreign operations PE = %E 237,275 (76,799)
237,275 (76,799)
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEMDEERR B
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investment in equity BAFESAREMEE
instruments at fair value through WAZREATEREZ
other comprehensive income NFEEE (53) (342)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) EREMEER A (ZH)
for the year 237,222 (77,141)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZ2 W A 4228 24,305 600,342
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
raEmREMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

2020 2019
—ZTIERF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E TET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: WU T A EFEIEER
(#518) mA
Owners of the Company KRBJHEB A (211,940) 677,713
Non-controlling interests FEERS T (977) (230)
(212,917) 677,483
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) M TFALTEEEZE
attributable to: WA (ZHH) 48%8 -
Oowners of the Company KABIHEB A 25,078 600,795
Non-controlling interests JEEER R 39 (773) (453)
24,305 600,342
(Loss)/earnings per share S (B8 &'BF
- Basic —EK 17 (HK$0.05307% 7T) HK$0.169478 T
— Diluted —#8 (HK$0.05307#7T)  HK$0.16387 7T

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMERAT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Pos[tion
FeIFEINRR

At 31 December 2020 R_ZE_ZTF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
—EIEHF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BEREE 19 55,060 94,255
Investment properties Ed—L7/E 20 2,368,672 2,387,597
Right-of-use assets FREEE 21 3,990 5,693
Intangible assets mEEE 22 - -
Investment in equity instruments BAFESAEMEEEA
at fair value through other ZREATAKRE
comprehensive income 24 1,171 1,224
Deposits paid for construction BRENzE® 79,589 74,946
Statutory deposits EERE 25 1,930 4,030
Loan receivable FEWE R 26 15,890 1,992
Deferred tax assets FIEIRIBE 23 17,818 -
2,544,120 2,569,737
Current assets RENEE
Properties for sale HFEME 27 1,921,997 1,809,871
Accounts receivable FEW AR =X 28 115,938 106,684
Other receivables, Hh U AR
prepayments and deposits BNRBERES 29 109,734 76,063
Pledged fixed deposits BIERERER (—R&RERR)
(general accounts) 30 171,058 5,264
Bank balances (trust and IR1T4ET (SsERBILERER)
segregated accounts) 30 92,355 83,766
Bank balances (general accounts) IR1T#E7F (—RERP) KIRE
and cash 30 20,610 20,680
2,431,692 2,102,328
Current liabilities mENEE
Accounts and bills payables FET BR A 24 31 313,895 155,160
Other payables and accrued expenses HMEN R RESER 32 42,518 38,779
Lease liabilities HEas 33 2,707 2,377
Contract liabilities =L =NE 34 1,739 6,643
Amounts due to Directors FE(TEERIA 35 143,578 109,292
Borrowings = 36 318,200 255,910
Tax payable (I TE 1,386 339
Corporate bonds NEEH 37 11,775 -
835,798 568,500
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EEMTENRR

At 31 December 2020 R _ZE-FF+_"H=+—H

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5F FAT FAT
Net current assets mENEERE 1,595,894 1,533,828
Total assets less current liabilities BEERERRBAR 4,140,014 4,103,565
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities HEas 33 1,377 3,392
Deferred tax liability FIEIRIBEE(E 23 346,724 349,227
Corporate bonds NEMES 37 18,401 29,621
Borrowings Bt 36 76,882 49,000
443,384 431,240
Net assets BERE 3,696,630 3,672,325
Capital and reserves B4 R &t
Share capital (&N 38 400,000 400,000
Reserves B 3,292,454 3,267,376
Equity attributable to owners of the AT B AEGEE R
Company 3,692,454 3,667,376
Non-controlling interests JEER R 4,176 4,949
Total equity HEzsEgE 3,696,630 3,672,325
The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 77 were SH70EE77/BEMNGE M HFREN _T - —F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson 13 +_H+=H ?E EE S ERIRETIE WA
December 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: UTREHEE
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, 6Bs, i Mr. Cao Yu
FEdtEtoss, ip T
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMERAT



Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

MAEmEEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARRANESS
(Accumulated
Nor- Capital Currency losses)/ Non-
Share Share distributable  Contributed  redemption FVTOCI  translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings Sub-total interests Total
BOTEIA
Ath2EUA (BitEH) /
Tk BOEE  FAREE EARE EFEERG e MEEEEE REEA gt JEEREE LS
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 H(S'000 H(S'000 H(S'000 HKS'000
femo TER TER Tan AR TER TEn o TR T TER TER
(noted) (noted) (hote ) (hoted) (notee)
(Hizta) (Wiztp) (Wiztc) (Wizte) (Histe)
At 31 December 2018 (originally stated) RZE-\E+ZA=+-A
(B%25) 10000 1578317 1260308 31154 5587 137 (207,609 081400 30668t 3087 3069771
New adoption of HKFRS 16 RAEENRRERE6R - - - - - - - (103 (103) - (108)
A1 lanuary 2019 Restated) RZE-hE-B-B @E5) 10000 1578317 1260308 315 5587 137 (207,609) QI3 3066381 3087 308968
Proft forthe year R - - - - - - - 61713 §1713 (230) 677483
Exchange differences EREE - - - - - - (76,744) - (76,744) (55) (76799
Fair value loss on investment in equity instruments AT BREZ ATERE - - - - - (174) - - (174 (168) (342
Total comprehensive (expenses)income for the year ER2TE (&) /W \BE - - - - - (174) (76,704) 671713 600795 53) 600312
CapitalInjection from non-controling interests FEREGTE - - - - - - - - - 2315 2315
At31 December 2019 RZE-hETA=+-8 10000 1578317 1260308 315 5587 @) (284353 6010 3667376 199 3672305
Loss for the year FERR - - - - - - - (211,940) (211,940) o7 212917)
Exchange differences ERZR - - - - - - 27,085 - 237,085 20 81775
Fair valug loss on investment in equity instruments AT BREZ ATESR - - - - - vl - - 2 (28) (83
Total comprefiensive (expenses)income for the year A2 (itt) /MAKRE - - - - - 2 237,085 (211,90) 2078 73 4305
At31 December 2020 WoE-EF+CAZ-8 10000 1578317 1260308 315 5587 (&) 7308) 184070 3690454 417 369,430
Notes: Mzt -
(a) The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate of deemed contributions  (a) AR kEBEEEE SN \F+B=1+—HIL*F
by the controlling shareholder in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries during ERRARENRBABRIEERER T EELE
the year ended 31 December 2018.
(b) The contributed surplus represented the aggregate of: (i) the difference of  (b) BRARGRIE TS EAN ()P ENE LSRG EE
HK$29,140,000 between the nominal value of shares of the acquired subsidiaries BARANBRAEBEHEFREMEIT RGO EER
and the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition &2 Z=7E29,140,0008 7T ; (NREARTDKRRN T —Z
at the time of the reorganisation of the Group; (i) the credit arising from the FHEZHHRETZRRFIAG L@EBZHIRZE
reduction of shares premium of HK$359,162,000 transferred to the contributed 22 BIR AR (D iR B A & 2 # R %8359,162,0008 7T (A
surplus account of the Company pursuant to the special resolutions passed AABBHERHRRE ; MiW_2—Z—F£+—BtH%»
by the shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting held on 20 KB B A BB 1776,758,0007 7T
October 2012; and (iii) a distribution of shares of a subsidiary of an amount of
HK$76,758,000 on 7 November 2012.
(© The capital redemption reserve arose from the repurchase of shares. The amount  (c) BB HERBRMDEL - x2 EIEFERIRG 2@
represents the nominal amount of the shares repurchased. (e
(d) FVTOCI reserve represents gains/losses arising on recognising financial assets ~ (d) BAFEFAEMEERAREERRIDBEARA
classified as investment in equity instrument at fair value through other TEFAEMEAVAZRATELEZ CREEM
comprehensive income. EXZIRE BB
(€) Currency translation reserve represents exchange differences relating to the  (e) SIS BREIEARAER BN ER 2 EEFEHAE

translation of the net assets of the Group's foreign operations from their functional
currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
currency translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
foreign operations.

e ERMERAEBZ 27 G BB BELZE
RER BEERNAMEERATREDRNIMNEREHE
PR FIIMNEMBRERSI ZAMEREBRNLES
INEBREMDEERET -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘7|- I:IEEE/)ILE;E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

2020 2019
—EZEF  —_ITNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Operating activities KEEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRIQ AT (B598) @A (251,346) 930,436
Adjustments for: TS IBEEHAZE ©
Impairment losses of financial assets of FRENA 2 EMEBEZ
amortised cost, net AERIEFER 872 4,470
Impairment loss of property, ME- -BEKRKREZ BERBIE
plant and equipment 36,063 17,679
Fair value changes on investment properties S EY)E N EEE) 158,920 (1,011,747)
Interest income FEUA (1,490) (50)
Finance cost &R 32,322 30,632
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)2 B = K2 3T E 4,242 5,009
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 2,589 2,480
Gain on early redemption of convertible bonds 12 R EEEI Al IR &% > W - (2,072)
Operating cash flows before CEESEHRZKERERE
movements in working capital (17,828) (23,163)
Decrease in statutory deposits EERE D 2,100 45
(Increase)/decrease in loan receivable FEW E = (1) wb (13,909) 18,547
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEURBR R (g h0) Rk (8,225) 165,498
Increase in other receivables, HEW AR T RIER
prepayments and deposits B (27,903) (38,307)
(Increase)/decrease in bank balances R1T4ETE Q&0 R
(trust and segregated accounts) (EsERBILERF) (8,589) 20,465
Increase/(decrease) in accounts FEATBR AU 4RI 0, G
and bills payables 156,537 (146,274)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities aram’E Rl /1Em (5,034) 6,643
Increase in other payables and HhEJ R EsH & BIgm
accrued expenses 2,706 13,169
Cash generated from operations RERRBIRE 79,855 16,623
Tax paid BfIRE (322) (1,499)
Interest paid BAFE (20,319) (23,933)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RS EEFRS S (FrA) REFE
operating activities 59,214 (8,809)

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?

BREEREEBFRAR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘7|-\ Iﬁﬁ/}lli%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZEZE_-_ZE_ZTE+_HB=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EF  —ZENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Investing activities REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME - -BEM&E (1,017) 311
Purchase of investment properties BEXEYE (926) (1,671)
Placement in pledged fixed deposits GFECRRTHER (165,794) (13)
Payment for deposit of constructions BEZEBMN - (74,946)
Refund of deposit of constructions BiEEsSns = 160,000
Interest received on bank deposits RITERBEWF 2 1,490 50
Net cash (used in)/generated from ’EEE FrA) FriSRE&FE
investing activities (166,247) 83,109
Financing activities B EE
Proceeds from issuance of corporate bonds ~ #E{TABMEEFREHNIE
(net of issuance cost) (OFREEITRLAY) - 8,000
Drawdown of borrowings REEE 146,869 99,000
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (69,500) (116,021)
Repayment of convertible bonds BERRES = (101,983)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEaE (2,569) (2,507)
Increase in amount due to Directors FE(TE S IEIE 31,672 20,564
Contribution from non-controlling interests JEIZEPE TS = 1,656
Net cash generated from/(used in) BB EENERTS  (FRA) REFEE
financing activities 106,472 (91,291)
Net decrease in cash and HERZERREEEHZ
cash equivalents AR (561) (16,991)
cash and cash equivalents FYZRERERIREIER
at beginning of the year 20,680 41,155
Effect of exchange rate changes INEEERRE Y E 491 (3,484)
cash and cash equivalents FRZAETRERREIEL
at end of the year 20,610 20,680
Analysis of balances of cash and RERERREEBERI N
cash equivalents
Bank balances (general accounts) R1T4ET —RIRP) RIRE
and cash 20,610 20,680
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GENERAL

Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group Limited
(formerly known as Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding
Group Limited) (the “Company”) is an exempted company
incorporated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its ultimate controlling party is Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.B.S.,J.P. who
is also the Chairman of the Company. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”). The Company is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Group are (1) the trading of electronic products and equipment,
(2) mineral mining, oil and gas exploration and production, (3)
the provision of financial services and (4) property investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") or thousands of units of HK$ (“HK$'000"),
which is also the functional currency of the Company:.

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

—RRRIR

EEERKREZEREEARLA (A1
EEEMREEZEREEARQF) (IX
ANE) HRBEERE-AN—FREE
(BETA) MM ARHREAE > HER
MREBBMEGRXZPARRAR (TBEZFT))
EIREDT -EEREZEF ST AFEREL
GBS, P (MABRABEFE) - KRB M
MEERTEEEMBAMUE RN RER
NEEN—EIAMEE -

AERGE_FT_TF+_A=+—HL
FEZEAVBREVELADREWE
NE (B TAER) - ARBABKEER
ARB - AEEZEIBEBANEFERK
REEH  QHE - AHEXRARBEK
FE QRHUEMIRBRAMERSE -

BEMBRELET (DET)) AUT BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS")

(A) Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1and  Definition of Material
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

The Group has also early adopted the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions” that is
mandatory effective for the financial year beginning on
or after 1 June 2020 and the impact of the adoption is
disclosed below.

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
Statements.

FEF
(MERMBHREER)

RAES] B BB G ZER

(A) mFEERHFNERZEETER

FA¥5 R & 2R

REFE AEBCERERERM
BREENESERIESI Z BT K
TomEBESMAE ((EBG5
BAg)) BfzEBMBREER
PACTIREE 3 DN =
—HRZEBAHRZFERB R E
B IR RIG B M B RE -

BRGHENE IR BEANES
BB G ERFeR (1B5])

ERMBREER BN EBNTER
CH)

BEEMBREENFT ARBEENE
BB G ERFEER
BRMBREEAETH
(&3])

REBITEBRARMANR S ST E
ANA—BRzEBBEZHMBEER
FIEMMNEBMBREENF165%

(1&57) TCovid-19/BRAFA S E R »
AR BB T o

REFERBEBMBREEM
SDERESIZETREBMBRE
ZRZESTHAEBRAFERB
TEENEHFRRERERRR, &
EEAVBRARTPAEKRETLES

=
T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSS") (Continued)

(B) New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

Amendment to HKFRS 16

EEMBREERE165
(&35T)

HKFRS 17

EEMBRESENE17R

Amendments to HKFRS 3

EEM RS EREIN
(1&51)

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

BB BRSERETR
BB ETERE395%
BB HEIREERFETH
BEBUBREEA IR
BEBRBHREEAE 165
(1&51)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

EEMBREERFE1058 &
A G AERFE285% (B5])

80

ERKIE]ERMBREER
(TEBMFBHREEN)) &)

(B) EHEHRE M oK 4 3 2 B 3T Re A

BT ERM RS ER

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
—Z2 - —F XA =1+H%KCovid-1948F
HEEH
Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments
R e RABRES]T
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BB ERZ IR

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

7

GlEs

B4
Bt
Fif

PE — B2

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

KREEHREBENDNGEATIBEEHE
FEE

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMERAT

AEBTERFEAUTEEMGE
BAREMRZ MG REIETEBMH
WEER

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
RUATHESZ#E
FtaZ FEHRBERK

1 April 2021
—E2-—Fp/s—H

1 January 2023

—E2-=%—HF—H
1 January 2022
B2 —F#—HF—H

1 January 2021

e

A date to be determined

HEARE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

performance and position.

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. FER&Z(E:TEARMIEREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (TEBUBHRESEN]) @)
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

(B) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue (B) EBlEMERKRERZIFTRE
but not yet effective (Continuea) BT AMBHRSER @)
Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after
RUTHESZ &
R ZEERREN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
SAGEHEERH15R (BF]) BaE EARBNIER REARESER —E2-=%—HF—H
EEHER] (CEZH)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
HKFRS Practise Statement 2
ARG ERFE IR BtBURIRE —E-=4—F—H
ERVBREENER
& 25 (1B5])
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
EAG 2R FE8R (BE]) BEMEETNER —E-=%—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a Single Transactions
EARAGETZEERF125% (1B5]) HEB—XGEENEERABERMNIEILERIE —E-=%—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before 1 January 2022
Intended Use
EARAGTZERFE165% (1B5]) M~ BB REE R ERRAINPTEMIE —E-"H#—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
EE YT AR E375% (1BF]) BEEEHN— BTN —E-"4#—F—H
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2018 — 2020 1 January 2022
EEMBRSER (EBF]) ERUBREEN T —NFEE 2 "&—F—H
“ETEFENFENE
The Company'’s directors have performed an assessment KRB EBEECHZEWMT REEL]
on these new and amendments to HKFRSs, and have SR BIREEAETT MG LHP
concluded on a preliminary basis that the adoption of BARNWZEN KBTS A
these new and amendments to HKFRSS is not expected BREEFERAGHAERTE
to have a significant impact on the Group’ s financial RFERRREEEARTE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUEESHMBHRRZBEERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FETER
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 UG EMBHRKRZEE

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

REVBREDREEBGSMA
CREMZEBMBREERNRER -
MRREEMHREMS  HARSA
HEeERRerETEEREFY
BURE  IERMBERRGEREKR UL
I IREMBRREEEAMORS
PRERRBEES EHRA (TEHAE
A1) RBEBREFRPOIBVIRE 2 KPR
REZBRARESFE

REMBRRERELENAEZRE
HETHREREMRELAFESE
ZMERETBMIAR T XFRHE
G5t URFRRE

FE SE Al A~ — AR IR A S BN S dm R AR 75
mitHzNEBZAFEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUEESHMBHRRZBEERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$212,917,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
and, as of that date, the Group has net current assets
of approximately HK$1,595,894,000. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, it is expected that the
current assets of properties for sale of approximately
HK$1,921,997,000 will not be completed in the next
twelve months from 31 December 2020. In considering
the impact of the properties for sale, the Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets excluding the
properties for sale of approximately HK$1,921,997,000
by approximately HK$326,103,000. In additions, the
Group had overdue balances in respect of borrowings of
approximately HK$264,743,000 as at 31 December 2020
and HK$318,200,000 up to this report. These events and
conditions may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.

Nevertheless, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on the going concern basis because
the directors of the Company are of the view that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations in the next twelve months from 31 December
2020, after taking into consideration of the following:

1) Confirmation from directors, Dr. Hui Chi Ming and
Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, that they would not demand
repayment of the amounts due to directors of
approximately HK$85,727,000 and HK$57,851,000
respectively within one year from the date of this
audit report;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGESUBRBRRZEERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Gt B
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3.1 RUGESUBHRRZEE (2

financial statements (Continued)

2)  The substantial shareholder, Dr. Hui Chi Ming, has 2) FEREFEHRIELTSHER
confirmed his intention to provide continuing NEREOBITHEEEENRF
financial support to satisfy the Group's working BEAEEIZHEBINELIR
capital and other financing requirement through HIFEVBEIF > EMaE R
continual renewal of borrowings or continual EENEEESRAEMRMER
provision of additional financing to the Group; K3

3)  Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the 3 MREREBEERZB ABET
Company issued 2% coupon convertible bonds with RZE_=Ft BN BIH
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 matured on 9 7% %820,000,000& 7T AI2%
July 2023 for a cash of HK$20,000,000 as general EEOMKRES UBREIRE
working capital of the Group; 20,000,000 TEA XN EED

—REBEE;
4)  0On 5 November 2021, the Group entered into a 4 WIZEZ—F+—BHB XK

sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of the entire issued share
capital of Millhaven Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, for a cash
consideration of HK$338,000,000 (the “Disposal”).
The Disposal constitutes a major transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules
but the Disposal is not subject to shareholders’
approval as Dr. Hui Chi Ming and his associates, who
together hold 53.49% of the issued share capital of
the Company, have given a written approval for the
Disposal. At the date of the report, the Disposal is
not yet completed but a non-refundable deposit of
HK$8,000,000 was received; and

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

5)

On 21 October 2019, Karl Thomson Financial Group
Limited ("KTFG"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a loan facility agreement
(“Loan Facility Agreement”) with PAL Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asia Tele-
Net And Technology Corporation Limited (“Asia
Tele-Net”). Mr. Lam Kwok Hing and Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun, executive directors of the Company, are an
executive director and the ultimate controlling
shareholder of Asia Tele-Net, and an executive
director of Asia Tele-Net who has an indirect
interest in Asia Tele-Net respectively. Pursuant to
Loan Facility Agreement, the Group provides an
unsecured revolving loan facility of HK$130,000,000
bearing interest at prime rate as announced from
time to time by The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited for lending Hong Kong
Dollars (“Prime Rate”) for a term of three years
commencing from the loan effective date and
ending on 20 October 2022; and

A 5

HEMBRRZBEREE
BEHER (@)

3.1 RRGEMBHRRZEE (B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REZASMBHRRZEERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EETHER &)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3.1 RUGESUBHRRZEE (2

financial statements (Continued)

6) In December 2021, the Company is negotiating 6)
with a bank in Hong Kong for a banking facility of
HK$200,000,000 bearing interest at 2.5% over Hong
Kong Interbank Bank Offered Rate for a term of 18
months from the drawdown date, secured by the
Group's investment properties and properties held
for sale located in Zhanjiang, the People’s Republic
of China ("PRC"). Up to the date of this report, an
indicative offer letter which set out the principal
terms and conditions of the banking facility was
signed by the Company and the bank. The directors
of the Company considered that the banking facility
would be granted to the Company in view of the
securities pledged for the banking facility.

N ZE I —F+ZRARE
FHEEEAEN—BETHER
B HHRET A H18E B WiR1T
B4 % 200,000,000 75 (& B
IRITEZEIF EM2.5% K F) = 51
B HBAEEREMERMUR
REE ANRHME (TRED) BT
HRERFE Y EFIRT) E1TE
FmoHEARSHI HARIT
MENFEERRREENET
HRRREHAEAE RZIET
BE-KRNBIEERA ENS
RITMEMIBIFNED S AR
R ERIBITHE -

Should the use of the going concern basis in preparation HMETRNEEMBRREERT
of the consolidated financial statements be considered to BREEERRATEE  AEET
be inappropriate, adjustments would have to be made to BEUFAEBREENRTAMA
write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets EHBIREE UFHiREMAE
to their net realisable values, to provide for any further WHIRZE—FaFd UHEIERHE
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current ENMaGEN2EARBHEENE
assets and liabilities to current assets and liabilities. The B ZERENTETARARMRELRS
effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in the R e

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGESUBRBRRZEERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Gt B
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technigue is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 sSignificant accounting policies (Continuead)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 sSignificant accounting policies (Continuead)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

RO BRRZBEREE
gEtEER (B

32 XEGHEX @
BREEE (8

MEBARZIFEREmEAERR
HhzBmnRE25) MzERmEA
KEAFBEARBBEBERTBEARE
RIEPIDEERNBARDEEFE
2R A R

ERENZWE

REBEEBMBREER S5 X (HE)
AEBRTERBENEER IEREZRE
WEES Rz EREREZ TSR 8%
EER PR -

BHEEE—RREGARIRE (H—#t
ERIRE) A—RINARERZBAEES
SRR ©

75 & AT Ep—IRR 0 16 EFE R E
B2 WnRP2ETNERBENEEZ
TR R R SR

s EPFRRAKEEEBENREFREIREE
RAEBEEAMMRMIE 2 ;

s RENE AEEZENRIERETT
ERESRIZEE %

e FEBEZBHOUREAGHAEER
BEEERARZEE MAEEAR
FIMITRUERESERN ZRIE

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Details of the Group's performance obligations for revenue for
contracts with customers resulting from application of HKFRS 15
are setoutin note 7.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
fixed assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties also include leased properties which are
being recognised as right-of-use asset.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
trading rights is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the assets are
derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible asset are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or, its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development and properties for sale are
classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in accordance with
the accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties for sale
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a specific identification basis including allocation
of the related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the properties less
estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for
the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combination, the
Group assesses Whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both leasehold
land and non-lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of leasehold properties that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option.

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to
lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions
in which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a
lease modification as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions
are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

RO BRRZBEREE
BEHEER (&

e @
FEAERBFHEN ()
HELE (8)

HRAESEBHEEARNEEEE &~
EEREEEHENHENRENGERE
aE (RENEKREESER » HERRA
BEERANETINERITRETHEEN

=+
o

AEEZBHAMERREEF LIRS
BRIEEEEENFEAKR - ELENS
WEZEEEMED U —E 2 EZEI
&S IEE S AR AL B0 0 By > AN S EAR R AH
SN 2 EE BB KRIFEEEMN
WoZBRBIUER BEELSOFZA
EBNiESEESHEMED

Covia-191G/# 1= Z R

FACoVId- 19 FERERELEZEER
MME AEECEEERE THMRER
HRERARTEEDEZTTLEREEE
A —HEEEE

- MHETMZEZHEHEHEREBME
o MEERNEBREREHEE
REXRZER DR EZESHEIA
BRE;

Annual Report 2020 ¢« —Z_F4FFIR

105



106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions (Continued)

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

- there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect
to its investment properties to other parties.

Rental income from leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRSs requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for accounts receivable arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

RO BRRZBEREE
EEEER (@

HRS BRALEECEREE BIRE—
BEFEEAFRTARABEZEE)
MEREEZEERNEDMAZEEEZ
A BEEEEEE AR LAEREAR
HIHE - BEEEHARERNGEREE
AIEREEREMELEZREWATIIEIE
BEXRCEEMA MR-

FrBEEEMA TN ELENBEN B -

EMITA

HERBRMRA TR ZEIHNT
AERETREERTREF -FIEARE
MEEEENRZ AER KK L#ES R
FEBRATDHRASIEGT E L
ARBEENETMEEEE-

THEERTREEIARATENE
HEEFANELEZ BUERMERI  HIR
BEBMBREENFISRIVISHE K
WENETETMEERTREE BAF
Bt ABzm (FAFESAEE)) ER
BEENEREERN MEREEZRS
AR ERERFFATHEENT/ME
EZATFERNEEMEENTHERZA
FEMAR GBEBRBERME) - WEBRAT
Bt \BaMERMEENTHBEHIERE
2R MABE R B m S

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

() Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCl and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transfered to accumulated
losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the other income
line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including statutory
deposits, loan receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables
and deposits, pledged fixed deposits and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit 10ss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continuea)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continuea)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RNGEUBHRRZEBERTEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR @)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) o ==
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE ()
@iy ~ Credit-impaired financial assets (i EEHETHEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more EELHEESMEEZMERR
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the REREERMEE —TBHHZLIE
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have BNEHR ZSHEEREREES
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired BE cHEEEEREZEEERE
includes observable data about the following events: UTEHZTERYE
(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the (a) BT ARBHRAEBRE RS
borrower; ENE N
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due by BREH FINBANAIPE
event; ;5
(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or ) ERAZERAHREMGBITA
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s MBEHBEEBZSCBENENERE
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a MEERARFERAR
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise KAGgEBZESE,
consider;
(d itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter d) ERATEREIETEMRG
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or BEME; ;N
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that () HRMBERBENETMEENRX
financial asset because of financial difficulties. EIEEBME
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of accounts receivable, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on accounts receivable using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REZASMBHRRZEERTE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BEEER (3@

(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continued) TRTH (&)
Financial assets (Continued) ETHEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ETHEERE ()

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain accounts receivable are
considered on a collective basis taking into consideration
past due information and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
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consideration the following characteristics when IESES YN S
formulating the grouping:
- Past-due status; —  EHRR;

- Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

- External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or l0ss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
receivable where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or l0ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (Continued)

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash
flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group
considers the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows
of the original financial asset, after reducing gross carrying
amount that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial assets will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
assets' original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial assets and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, bills payable, other
payables and accrued expenses, borrowings, corporate bonds
and amounts due to Directors are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or 0ss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange
or modification is considered as non-substantial modification
when such difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial liabilities' original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial liabilities and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ﬁﬁ”&ﬁéﬂﬁﬂiﬁizgﬁﬁig
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TR &)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Related parties RAEAL

W a TG Bl — S gRRnEAE
A B

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@ WMBUTAT BIZATHZATZ

related to the Group if that person: TR B AN S B A R B
() has control or joint control of the Group; (h HAEEEBZEHIENHEREIZE
B ;
(iy  has significant influence over the Group; (il HEAEEHBRBEAZEN;
@iy is a member of the key management personnel of (i) BEAEEREZSLABFTESE
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or ABZHE ; &

WU T ERRGEER A —HERER
FTEE BRETER AR

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of (b)
the following conditions applies:

ZEBREAARDHERF—EEZ
ERE BI8AT -NEAF

() the entity and the company are members of the (i)
same group (which means that each parent,

(if)

(iif)

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others),

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

the entities are joint ventures of the same third
party,

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

kEZMBAREBEHES —4
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group;

(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

(vii) the entity, or any member of the Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of person are those family
members who may be expected to influence by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Group have made in the process of applying the Group's

4.
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accounting policies and that have the most significant effect Z2EREABREARZEE
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Measurement of ECL StEFAHIEERA

A number of significant judgements are also required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such
as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Selecting appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL; and

- Establishing the relative probability weightings of forward-
looking scenarios.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

ECL of different financial assets is measured by the Group on
either a 12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether they
are in Stage 1, 2 or 3 as defined in note 6. A financial asset
moves to Stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, and it comes to Stage 3 when it is
credit-impaired (but it is not purchased original credit-impaired).
In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
significantly increased, the Group takes into account qualitative
and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information with significant judgements involved.

Models and assumptions used

The Group uses various models and assumptions in estimating
ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying the appropriate model
for each type of financial assets, as well as the assumptions
used in these models. Please refer to note 6 for more details on
ECL.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. FAREAIETRGAFREERE

AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL

Impairment assessment under ECL for trade and other
receivables (except for cash clients and margin clients)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
accounts receivable (except for cash clients and margin clients)
that result from transactions within the scope of HKFRS 15. The
provision rates are based on debtor’s aging as groupings of
various debtors that have similar 10ss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group's historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable and available without undue costs and effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
is considered. In addition, accounts receivable with significant
balances and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL is disclosed in note 6.

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable (including cash
clients, margin clients, statutory deposits, other receivables and
aeposits, pledged fixed deposits and bank balances)

The impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost (including cash clients, margin clients, statutory
deposits, other receivables and deposits, pledged fixed deposits
and bank balances) is an area that requires the use of models
and assumptions about future economic conditions and the
credit risk of the respective financial instrument.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable (including cash
clients, margin clients, statutory deposits, other receivables
and deposits, pledged fixed deposits and bank balances)
(Continued)

(i)

Inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues

ECL is the discounted product of expected future cash
flows by using the Probability of Default (“PD"), LossS
Given Default (“LGD") and Exposure at Default (“EAD"),
of which PD and LGD are estimates based on significant
management judgement. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the management perform individual assessment
for each client by considering various factors, including
the realisable value of securities or collaterals from
clients and their guarantors which are held by the Group
and subsequent settlement and additional collaterals
received.

Forward-looking information

In measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9, it should
consider forward-looking information. The calculation of
ECL incorporates forward-looking information through
the use of publicly available economic data and forecasts
based on assumptions and management judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors and through the use of
multiple probability weighted scenarios.

Details of the impairment assessment of financial assets
at amortised cost is disclosed in note 6.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continuead)

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by the independent professional valuer.
The valuers have determined the fair value based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on
the valuation report prepared by the valuers, management
has reviewed the valuation including the assumptions and
estimates adopted.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, accumulated losses and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a continuous basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with capital. The Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issuance of new debts or
the redemption of existing debts. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission and are required to comply with
the financial resources requirements according to the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the “SF(FR)R"). The Group's regulated entities are subject to
minimum paid-up share capital requirements and liquid capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors,
on a daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements under
the SF(FR)R. The Group's regulated entities have complied with
the capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R throughout
both years.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ERITH
Categories of financial instruments SR T ELER
2020 2019
—E-ERF ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Financial assets THEE
Investment in equity instruments BATFEFAEM
at FVTOCI 2EWRAZEATAKE 1,171 1,224
Financial assets at amortised cost BgERASIE SMEE 516,141 251,838
517,312 253,062
Financial liabilities — amortised cost ERBE—EHHERA 925,249 637,762

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments include investment in equity
instruments at FVTOCI, statutory deposits, loan receivable,
accounts receivable, other receivables and deposits, pledged
fixed deposits, bank balances and cash, accounts and bills
payables, other payables and accrued expenses, amount due
to Directors, corporate bonds and borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The Group's overall strategy substantially
remains unchanged from prior year.

M5 E R EEE R REER

AEBZERIBESEZATES AHM
EHWRAZERATERE EZEHRE B
W E ™R~ IR Eth B BR TR e % <
BRFERER - RTEERRE BN
RN EE S HMENERRRESER
BNEERE ARESREE ERMT
A2 BREMNERE RILFSRT
BERMZEAREETSER (B ERK
MEREE) - EERRRABE SRR R
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R BE BRI 3 ELRR - DUE (R BE K BF Ko B 203
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that:

. are offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position; or

° are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial
instruments, irrespective of whether they are offset in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC"), and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligation
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to set off on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
brokers and cash clients that are not to be settled on the same
date, financial collateral including securities received by the
Group, deposit placed with HKSCC and brokers do not meet the
criteria for offsetting in the consolidated statement of financial
position since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is
only enforceable following an event of default.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

The amount offset and the net balance are shown as follows:

EWMTIA (&

MEREEEREREE (&)

mIHTHEERETMER (7

RIS RGP TRAT ¢

2020 2019
—EZZE =ty
Accounts Accounts Accounts Accounts
receivable payable receivable payable
FE U BR TR FE{ BRFR FE W BR 3K FEfTER X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TR FET
Gross amounts of cash client RETRREBHRER
and Hong Kong Securities BIRAE4E%E
Clearing Company Limited 121,546 (190,643) 36,993 (110,565)
Amounts offsetting RIHEE (92,630) 92,630 (29,393) 29,393
Net amount of cash client REFPRERFRE
and Hong Kong Securities BIRABFE
Clearing Company Limited 28,916 (98,013) 7,600 (81,172)
Balance not offsetting KIRHET 87,594 (40,380) 99,129 (73,988)
Loss allowance for ECL BHEEBE HIEERE (572) = (45) -
Net amount presented inthe I & BRI ERA
consolidated statement of 252358
financial position 115,938 (138,393) 106,684 (155,160)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

As the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities are
mainly in functional currency of respective group entities, the
currency risk resulting from daily operations is considered
not significant. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged fixed deposits, loan receivable, corporate
bonds and borrowings. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate of bank balances,
loans to securities margin clients and amounts due to Directors.
The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate arising
from the Group's variable-rate loans to securities margin clients
and amounts due to Directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate loans
to securities margin clients and amounts due to Directors
mentioned above at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and
liabilities recorded at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2019: 50
basis point) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point (2019: 50 basis point)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$285,000 (2019:
HK$350,000).

The effect on bank balances has not been taken into account in
preparing the sensitivity analysis because the effect involved is
not significant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTOCI. For equity
securities measured at FVTOCI quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management manages this exposure by closely monitoring
the risk. The Group will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date. For sensitivity
analysis of equity securities the sensitivity rate is increased to
20% in current year as a result of the volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 20%
(2019: 20%) higher/lower, the other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2020 would increase/decrease
by HK$234,000 (2019: increase/decrease by HK$245,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of investments at FVTOCI.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to accounts receivable, loan receivable,
other receivables and deposits, pledged fixed deposit, bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets, except that the credit risks associated
with loans to securities margin clients included in accounts
receivable and loan receivable of HK$57,428,000 (2019:
HK$72,361,000) (net of allowance for credit losses) and
HK$15,890,000 (2019: HK$1,992,000) (net of allowance for credit
losses) is mitigated because they are secured over properties or
listed securities.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group’s credit
risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and the
related impairment assessment, if applicable, are summarised
as below:

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures over
the customers to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts for securities cash clients, securities
margin clients and advising on corporate finance. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on
accounts balances individually or based on provision matrix.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients arising from the business
of dealing in securities

As described in more details in note 28, the credit risk on
cash clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
are managed through daily monitoring of the outstanding
exposures from individual clients and realisable values of
individual client’s securities. The Group has concentration of
credit risk to the largest cash clients’ exposure and five largest
cash clients’ exposure representing 22% (2019: 19%) and 54%
(2019: the five largest cash client’s exposure representing
31%) respectively of the total cash clients as at 31 December
2020. The balances due from the largest cash clients and the
five largest cash clients were approximately HK$4,337,000
(2019: HK$1,361,000) (net of allowance for credit losses)
HK$10,810,000 (2019: HK$2,203,000) (net of allowance for credit
losses) respectively. Apart from the exposures to five largest
cash clients” exposure mentioned above, the directors of the
Group consider that the concentration of credit risk is limited
due to the customer base being large and unrelated.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable arising from loan to securities margin
clients

As described in more detail in note 28, the credit risk on loan to
securities margin clients is managed through daily monitoring of
the outstanding exposures from individual clients, margin values
and realisable values of individual client’s securities. The Group
has concentration of credit risk to the largest securities margin
clients’ exposure and ten largest securities margin clients’
exposure representing 13% (2019: 22%) and 75% (2019: 83%) of
the total loans to margin clients as at 31 December 2020. The
balances due from the largest securities margin clients and
the ten largest securities margin clients were approximately
HK$7,200,000 (2019: HK$15,760,000) (net of allowance for
credit losses) and HK$42,986,000 (2019: HK$60,150,000) (net
of allowance for credit losses) respectively as at 31 December
2020, of which the amount is secured by clients’ securities with
an aggregate fair value of HK$24,301,000 (2019: HK$28,112,000)
and HK$137,572,000 (2019: HK$150,834,000) respectively as
at 31 December 2020. Apart from the exposures to ten largest
margin clients’ exposure mentioned above, the directors of the
Company consider that the concentration of credit risk is limited
due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

Accounts receivable from the business of advisory for financial
management and properties investment

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the directors of the
Company consider that the concentration of credit risk on
business of advisory for financial management and properties
investment are limited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Accounts receivable from trading business

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 80% (2019: 68%)
and 99% (2019: 100%) of the total accounts receivable was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the trading business. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals.

Loan receivable

As described in more details in note 26, the credit risk on loan
receivable is managed through regular analysis of the ability of
borrowers to meet interest and principal repayment obligations
and by changing the lending limits where appropriate. Exposure
to credit risk is also managed by obtaining collateral. As at 31
December 2020, apart from the exposures to the concentration
of credit risk from one independent counterparty amounting
to HK$15,890,000 (2019: one independent counterparties
amounting to HK$1,992,000), the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk on loan receivable.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable arising from HKFECC & HKSCC

The credit risk of accounts receivable from HKFECC & HKSCC is
considered as not material taking into account the good market
reputations and high credit ratings of the counterparties.

Pledged fixed deposit/Bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by authorised credit-
rating agencies.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &FITH #E)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

MERREEREREE (&

5B R EE ()

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises REBABEERRRR T EEIETHE
the following categories: Al
Internal Accounts Other
credit rating Description receivable financial assets
R ER 1= E 5T 4R g FEULBR TR HthsmMEE
Low risk The counter party has a low risk Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
of default and does not have any not credit-impaired
past-due amounts
EREE RZEFHENRERER 2 HRTEAEERE— 1218 B 7888
i dE T3 AR RN IE REREERE EEBIE
Doubtful There have been significant increase Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
F5¢ B ARSI SSN R E TR E AL 2 BRI EE R THEREERE— TR EERE—
EER B YIRS L REE LM REREERE RAEREERIE
Loss There is evidence indicating the assetis  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
518 ERBRTNEMEELNIREERE 2 HRTEAE ERE— T HATEARE B R —
HIREERE HIREERE
Written-off There is evidence indicating that debtor ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
is severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
e ERBERTEBABARERFREHE EE B RAIE EE A A

BEAEE I EE R TER
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMTAH @
Financial risk management objectives and MERBEEEERER &

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead) 1E B R B R REF G ()
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TREFMAEBBETEAREESBETG
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment: ZEMEBEEZEERRRO :
2020 2019
12-month Gross Gross
External Internal  or lifetime carrying carrying
Notes  credit rating credit rating ECL amounts amounts
12885k
5hEB S 2HTE —TZTE _—Z—hE
i3 8Tk EETR =858 HEERTE A MBEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets at AT EZ
amortised cost TRIEE
Statutory deposits EEEE 25 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 1,930 4,030
FEA (f3E1) 128 B BH
B8
Accounts receivable BHERERARS 28 N/A (Note 2) 12m ECL 20,139 7,060
arising from dealing PTEE £ 2 FEUBR R B (Mizx2) 12BBEH
in securities-cash clients EEBE
Loans to securities HTYEFREERE 28 N/A (Note 2) 12m ECL 57,459 72,395
margin clients ZE™® TEH (MisF2) 12BBEH
=861
Accounts receivable ETERKREES 28 N/A (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL 24,126 24,786
arising from business EBMEEZ FEA (f5£2) - not credit
of trading electronic A impaired
products and equipment 2 HATERR
=EE18
—RHR
=ERE
Accounts receivable MEREBEBM 28 N/A (Note 3)  Lifetime ECL 4,748 368
arising from business EX ZEWER TEH (Ff¥5£3) - not credit
of properties investment impaired
2 HATEHR
=EE1E
—RHE
=ERE
Accounts receivable EBREHEER 28 N/A (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL 9,477 1,908
arising from HKFECC & ERERES REA (ff52) - not credit
HKSCC Z AR impaired
2 AT
=EE1E
—RHR
=ERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable
arising from business
of advisory for financial
management

Other receivables
and deposits

Loan receivable

Pledged fixed deposits

Bank balances
(trust and segregated
accounts)

Bank balances
(general accounts)
and cash

FHEEEARED

PR 2 FEIRAR

HithFE W AR R e

FEWE ™R

EHRIFERER

RTEF (B5tk

BIIRRA)

wiTHERE (—
RBRE

IS

Notes

BisE

28

29

26

30

30

30

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?

6. ERMTAH #@

M5 E R EIEE R REER

=B R BEE (&)

12-month

External Internal  or lifetime
credit rating credit rating ECL
12(BA =

5hEB A ER 2 HATEHA
E&T4& EETR =818
N/A (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL

REA (Mt5£2) - not credit
impaired

2 HITERR

=EE1E

—RHIR

EERE

N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL

TE A (Mizx1)  12/@B 78
EEBE

N/A (Note 2) 12m ECL

REA (MzE2)  12ERTEHR
EEBE

Baa2 or above (Note 4) 12m ECL
Baa2ai U £ (MizE4)  12{ERTEHA
EEBE

Aa3 or above (Note 4) 12m ECL
Aa3af L (Miz4) 12f@R 7
EEBE

Baa2 or above (Note 4) 12m ECL
Baa2a M & (MisE4)  12{ERTEHR
EEBE

IR EEREBBRAR

2020
Gross
carrying
amounts
BT
HEEIRTEE
HK$'000
FHT

561

98,624

15,909

171,058

92,355

20,610

—
=

=

2019
Gross
carrying
amounts

—E—NEF

EEEE
HK$'000
T

212

29,422
2,000
5,264

83,766

20,680
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERITH #E)
Financial risk management objectives and MERBEEEERER &
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead) EER R BEFFE (&
Included in other receivables and deposits are amounts representing (1) HMEWEFARESOERLCEESBEEL
other receivables and refundable deposits for operating securities dealing REARZ M AEEBREREHEBH
business and for using trading system which the Group is entitled but Fi g - EBPREE AR R HEEER
held by SEHK, SFC, HKSCC, HKFE and supplier. The Group assessed the B) FRES 2 MR KR rIREZE - A&
loss allowance for these other receivables and deposits on 12m ECL basis. ER12EAEHCEFBEETHZSHME
In determining the ECL, the Group has taken into account the historical WEERR ke zBEBEE RETRBEEES
default experience and forward-looking information as appropriate. There B AEEBS REFBOSE RAREEER
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. (WNEA) - BHRBER UK EEE R &8
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group provided HK$264,000 EEM-REBEE_Z_SF+_A=+—HILF
impairment allowance for other receivables on the individual assessment. B AEEBRFER ST E T E M EYERRETHR
B B #264,00058 7T ©
Other receivables are repayable on demand as at years ended 2020 and HtEKRIEBEREE S _SEERZS—HLEF
2019. FEAREREER
Movement in the loss allowance for other receivable is as follows: BRI 2 E B T -
2020 2019
ZEBCEF ZE-NF
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12mECL  (credit-impaired) 12m ECL (credit-impaired)
12EARY 2WENEEER NEAEH 2HBEHEESE
FEFE  (LREERE) FEBE  (HAEERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TERT TiEx T
Balance at beginning of the year FMiER = - - -
Addition for the year AEEEM 264 - 4,487 -
Transfer to credit-impaired BREEERE = = (4,487) 4,487
Amount written off as uncollectible MR EEEE = = - (4,487)
Balance at end of the year FXRERR 264 - - -
Annual Report 2020 ¢« —Z_F4FFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERITH #E)
Financial risk management objectives and MERBEEEERER &

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuea) EERGRBEFFE (E)

Notes: (Continued) Wizt (@)

2 For accounts receivable arising from dealing in securities-cash clients, () MESFREBELARZMEEZ BRI A TE
loans to securities margin clients and loan receivable, the Group has FREERFZERKEVERMES  AEED
applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance EREBMBRELENEIRZ — KA AL
at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these TEHE B IE 2R EEE - AL EEBE LT
items by individual assessment. HEEZEEEZEREEREB-

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed Gt IEEDRBEBARBRAZE A
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and borrowers are FHZ ELREZENEF UG TR BAMEH
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without undue B LA B 7ﬁ BN B 1S 2 A B M B RHE B
cost or effort. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group BRHE_Z_EF+_A=+—HLFE>
provided HK$40,000 (2019: HK$11,000), HK$31,000 (2019: HK$34,000) and AEEBERBEENTHEDNMFSHEEEAR
HK$19,000 (2019: HK$8,000) impairment allowance for accounts receivable SEEZRBER BTESFRESRTLZ
arising from dealing in securities cash clients, loans to securities margin B ERER R BIER#EA0,0008T (ZF
clients and loan receivable respectively on the individual assessment. — £ 11,0007 7T) 31,0008 7T (ZF—H4E
34,0007 7T) K219,0007 7t (ZZ— A4 © 8,000
JT) ©
The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for TRATRIE—R A ERERIR ST A RRE
accounts receivable from cash clients under the general approach. Rz EH o
Movement in the loss allowance of cash clients HLEFEREEZEE)
2020 2019
—BCEfF “E-NE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12mECL  (credit-impaired) 12mECL (credit-impaired)
12EREH 28BHEEFR NEAES 2HBEHEESE
FEFE  (LREERE) FEEE  (LREERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER TiEx TR
Balance at beginning of the year FEERR 11 - 6 -
Additional for the year AEEEM 29 - 14 -
Transfer to credit-impaired BREEEERE = = ) 9
Amounts written off as uncollectible MR e el IE = = - o)
Balance at end of the year FRER 40 - 11 -
* less than HK$1,000 * 1,000787T AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMTH #E)

Financial risk management objectives and MBERMEEEERBER (&

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) FERERBE L (E)
Notes: (Continued) btaE : (#)
() (Continued) () (%)

The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for
accounts receivable from securities margin clients under the general
approach.

Movement in the loss allowance of securities margin clients

TRINTRE—RAEMERESFRESER

SRAEES 2 o

R R E PR R 2

2020 2019

k- 33 “T-NEF
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12mECL  (credit-impaired) 12mECL (credit-impaired)
128ARSE 2BFEBCEER PREAES 2HEHEEER
FEFE  (LREERE) FEEE  (HREERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT FER FET THET
Balance at beginning of the year FEER 34 - 32 -
Additional for the year AEEEM 67 - 2 -
Transfer to credit-impaired BEZEERE (70) 70 - -
Amounts written-off as uncollectible MR REIHRIE = (70) - -
Balance at end of the year FRER 31 - 3 -

In determining the recoverability of the accounts receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the accounts receivable from
the date credit was initially granted, subsequent settlement and the fair
value of pledged marketable securities up to the reporting date. In the
opinion of the Directors, there is no further credit provision required in
excess of existing loss allowance.

REBNEERUBERRZ TREIHER > G 8
HREHEEEREEEREB ML EWR
BRREEER HREFR A BRITRESRS
ZAFEZEMEE-EERSN BRFHEER
BRERLUONZE— S EEERF-

The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for TRITRESCHEINBETERRREBES
accounts receivable from business of trading electronic products and EEFTES 2 FEWERF R 2 28 o
equipment under the simplified approach.
2020 2019
- g 3. Z-NE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (not credit-impaired)
2HEREEFE 2HBHEERSE
(REREERE) REREEREB)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FER
Balance at beginning of the year FENEEER - -
Addition for the year REEEM 358 -
Balance at end of the year FREER 358 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERITH #E)
Financial risk management objectives and MBERMEEEERBEK (&)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuea) B R KR EE (&)
Notes: (Continued) Wizt (@)
2 (Continued) 2 (#)
The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for TRITIRIE—M S AR BN ERFESD 2 EEh o
loan receivable under the general approach.
2020 2019
- g %3 Z2—nE
12m ECL 12mECL
128 A B 12{8 5 B4
FEFE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Balance at beginning of the year FAEEER 8 4
Addition for the year AEEIEM 1 33
Balance at end of the year FRAERR 19 8
©) The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for TRITREGCA AR EYEREMES
accounts receivable from business properties investment under the Z R ARFREE D 2 B8
simplified approach.
2020 2019
—ECEF &
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (not credit-impaired)
2HEREERE 2HBHREERE
(REREERHE) (REBREERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRL FTER
Balance at beginning of the year FENEER = -
Addition for the year AEEEM 143 -
Balance at end of the year FXRER 143 -
For accounts receivable arising from business of properties investment, MY EREERFAEEZERERMS  A&R
the Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by using BiEERER %EEI&E,HHHK/Rﬁ%HFzma%
a provision matrix, grouped by past due status. HEZRHEERE
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed EETBEELRBEBAZBS IRAFHRZE
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for SFEEBNTTUEE W B AN HIBZ M4
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. KB R AER Z AR ERMEH A

150  wiSDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « & E &R EiZREMERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Notes: (Continuead)

(4) The credit risk on bank balances (including segregated and general
accounts) are limited because the counterparties are with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. Majority of bank
balances are deposited in reputable large commercial banks with credit
rating of Baa2 or above issued by Moody’s and AA+ issued by China
Chengxin respectively.

Impairment assessment policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on
individual circumstances or market condition.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the risk management department
is responsible in developing and maintaining the processes for
measuring ECL, the impairment requirements under HKFRS
9. The ECL are assessed by the Group on annual basis. The
Group applies simplified approach to measure ECL on accounts
receivable (except for dealing in securities-cash clients and
loans to securities margin clients); and general approach to
measure ECL on accounts receivable arising from dealing in
securities-cash clients and loans to securities margin clients and
other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost. Under
the simplified approach, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the general approach,
financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition: Stage
1:12m ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired and
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.

ERMTH @
HHRREZEBERBE (&

5B R EE ()
Mz ()

@ BARRZEFEEAREEIRABBETSER
SPAR HURITHE TR (IR B R—RERF) ZEE
BEAR A IRITEFFHRN DB ERBLG
FBaa2si U LEEFRURFHIEHETAAMEER
TR EERFZARBEBERT

R EFHE R

AEEZBRERELDSRAERERER
S FE TR T B A SR St BB B R A B K
BETER

RERMERMBRSENFIRE  ARE
ERMEEHERERRETSBMBRS
ZRFIRBETZHEEZERFERMEE
BEZEF - AEEESFHEAEREES
BIFHT L - AEERBBIEH A BIE
WEER (BHFREETR XS MG TESFR
BEERZEMMGRIN 2EBEERE
REB—RT A EESREEE R RSN
EEZEREERR - BTESRESERZ
ERRBBENATRZEMEREEY
FEEEBEE - REMIEDZE FEBN
FReRRREERRZERAEHRER
W RBE—RGZ EREEDRESN
THRBLUREERBRZEEHER BB X
TZERRETER  F1ER D 12EA
TAHEERE  F2MER  2RREER
B-RHREERE ; RFEEEK : 2878
HEEFER-HRESRE".
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Impairment assessment policies (Continued)
Definition of Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 are as below:

Stage 1:  Exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit-impaired upon origination, the
portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the
probability of default events occurring within the
next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2.  Exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
are not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting
the remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.

Stage 3.  Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have
occurred. For exposures that have become credit-
impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest
revenue is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision)
rather than the gross carrying amount.

For such financial assets classified as Stages 1 and 2, the
management assesses 10ss allowances using the risk parameter
modelling approach that incorporates key parameters,
including PD, LGD and EAD. For credit-impaired financial assets
classified as Stage 3, the management assesses the credit 10ss
allowances by estimating the future cash flows expected to
arise from the financial assets.

EWMTIA (&

MBRAREEBRKREEK (&

5B R EE ()
BEFIZHR (&
BIPEER  B2PEER MBI AEMT ©

BIMEER | FLE REDEEERRAR NG
mm BEERREREER
BZREBRMES  EEKHKI2
BREABELEBOEMHZBEME
M2z 2HRMEEBED -

B2MEER D MLERERDEEERRKRE KIE
Bm-EBXRHBEEREZA
s ERXE2HRREES
B EIRBREMEEZH T
fR) °

B BERE—BNZESFRH HEA

EZEsRRREEREARE

FER AERFE/ER

REERE-MEHREER

BZRRMES 2R HBHEM

A (R (MIFREREE)

FERERAMKRMESD 2 H A
EEBERLFAENBUA -

MOERSBIRBMERZEMEEMS >
EEETHARARSHBEES AT EHEERE
W R AEBTRBOBER BENEBARERRK
BHORBMOEMEBSH LD ERBIE
BZzEBHREEREZEREEMS B
EERRAtRBAtEREEEEZRRK
ReERBRFEEEEEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Impairment assessment policies (Continued)

The measurement of ECL adopted by the management involves
judgements, assumptions and estimations as follows:

. Determination of the criteria for significant increase in
credit risk;

. Selection of the appropriate models and assumptions; or

o Establishment of relative probability weightings for
forward-looking scenarios.

Measurement of ECL

The ECL are measured on either a 12-month or lifetime basis
depending on whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is
considered to be credit-impaired.

PD represents an estimate of the likelihood of default of a
borrower on its financial obligation over a given horizon, i.e. over
the next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime. For margin
clients, the Group determines PD by the internal credit ratings.
For other financial assets at amortised cost, the external credit
ratings and related PD are taken into consideration.

LGD represents an estimate of the loss on default. For margin
clients, LGD is determined based on factors including the
realisation value of collateral and the estimated volatility. For
other financial assets at amortised cost, LGD is determined
based on assessed publicly available information from credit-
rating agencies.

EWMTIA (&

MBRAREEBRKREEK (&

5B R EE ()
BEFIZHR (&

EBEBAMRAZEREEBENES RN
AR R R A

BEGEERBABEMZE] ;

EEBEZREREBR X

e RURMBMBERZAEBMER-

st ERAISEERR

RIEEREREREHEEERRAIE
BMINNEERSWEREERE RRE
EEBEZNERNEMEREGE-

BAOBRBEERARBREELER BIRRK
128 B e T FERRN) EMHFEESE
ZENAEMZES - RARBEELM
B AEBRABLEETRETENMY
Ko BN ASEZHMESREEM
5 AgERINBEENRRERENR

BHOBRARIBEHENBRRZ M HRE
TERAME BHNBRRXDRERFRZ
BREERGFTNBSERETE R H
HRASBEZHMEMEEMS > BNE
RETDRBEETRIEBPATEZ AR
ERSEHEE-
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)

EAD represents the amounts expected to be owed at the time of
default over the next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on
the Group's historical experience and credit risk assessment,
including forward-looking information. Margin clients use the
number of days past due and loan-to-collateral value (“LTV")
to determine significant increase in credit risk. Other financial
assets use number of days past due as determinant of credit
risk. Credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly if the
credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date
relative to the credit rating at the date of initial recognition.

Forward looking information

The estimation of credit loss under all stages is taking into
consideration of forward looking information. The Group
identifies the key economic driver impacting credit risk and
ECL to be the growth rate of Gross domestic product (“GDP”).
The Group applied the probability weighted scenarios for
incorporating the forward looking information. The growth rate
of GDP has been used in determining the probability-weighting
of each of the optimistic scenario, base case scenario and
pessimistic scenario. These probability-weighted ECLs are
determined by running each scenario through the relevant ECL
model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

ERMTH @
MBRAREEBRKREEK (&

5B R EE ()
FIERAIIGERE (&

BRI OISR ARKI2E L RERT
FERARNEENRARN -

HEEEBEANEE N2 S

REE B2 BEEBLIRENERE S KIS
MM AEEERBEAELERMESR
BTG (BERELEER REEEE
EREUEM KD RESEFERA
HRBEKRERRBIFREELE (TERHA
BRMAEELR) KETEERRZAE
mm-HthemMEEERARRBERE
BEEBZRERR -HEGFRNRSH
HEERPREBAMZEETHRARES
B BlgRABEERBRAREM-

BTBEIE B

FRAEMRKRZEEBIBMEEE R T AMEME
B -rEEREXECERRKERE
EERZIEEERIREABEINEER
8 (TGDP ) 1B R - REEKAB R MIE
BRMABEMEEN -COPBEXEHWA
REESELBEER EXBFRKIEHR
RZBEME - ZEMXNMERREEES
BhEBHEBABEERRREETERE
BRUESHRUBEZBFRMEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings, corporate
bonds and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group's liquidity position is monitored on a daily basis
by management and is reviewed monthly by the Directors.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the
table has been drawn up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. The interest payments are computed
using contractual rates or, if variable, based on the prevailing
interest rate at the end of each reporting period.

ERMTH @
MHEREEEERRER (&

BB AR

EERHETARE  AERERNER
EEBRAENAZNAEREERREIR
ERERITEMBZRERSTAREE
BKF - EREEREBEERARDRHZH
BB RRERE T EMZE -

rEFEZABESRNIHEEESHE
ROTHEFSAER - TRFLEEE
BREZCENPREZEHEBEZHR TS
MEERN -ZRENTER R/
BEZEFEONREFEEZAMRERS
MERH -

TERFLFEBRBEZEERRRR T
MEEZHRTENEMER sIFTER
MEBEMES  ZXxENAEEALZNZR
SRR URBREMEBHRERR
TREB R REBENERETHEERE -
FEMRDBEENFERR (HRFE) &R
SR RITH R R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERITH #E)
Financial risk management objectives and MBERMEIEEEREER (&)

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) BB A (E
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  and 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate orless  3-6months 612 months 12 year 25years  OverSyears  cashflows amount
RERR
mE H=ERd *4%
il Wo  ZEAER AEtTBR  -EAE  RERE  ESNL BeRESE  EEM

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Fin Fin Fin TiEn TiEn TR TR FiEn

Financial liabiities ERAR
At 31 December 2020 RZB-EE+-A=H-A
Accounts payable FEfIRR - 138,393 - - - - - 138,393 138,393
Other payables and accrual expenses EtER R ER - 42518 - - - - - 42518 42518
Bills payable - 175,502 - - - - - 175,502 175,502
Amount due to Directors 0%5.13% 143,578 = = = = = 143,578 143,578
Borrowings
- Varigble rate 5.00% 684 692 1399 57,728 = = 60,503 55,500
-Fixed rate 8.08% 326,537 = = 21,382 = = 347919 339,582
Corporate bonds AFEE 7.03%11.57% 2,030 8,251 4311 14,735 4,555 - 33,954 30,176
Lease liabilties i 5.13%11.33% 673 852 1,347 1,405 = = 421 4,084
829,915 9,801 7123 95,250 4,555 = 946,644 929,333
Weighted ~ Ondemand Total
average  and 3months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 0rless 36months 612months 1-2 year 2-5years QOver 5years cash flows amount
BERR
e R=ERF AR
T WA ZERER AETZEA —-EfE WELE BENE  REREBER fEE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000
TEn TER TER T FER TER TER TEn
Financial liabiities ERAR
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZA=+-A
Accounts payable FEfIERR - 155,160 - - - - - 155,160 155,160
Other payables and accrual expenses BT RE ER - B779 - - - - - B9 B9
Amount due to Directors EfESTE 0%5.13% 109.292 - - - - - 109292 109292
Borrowings [EE
-Variable rate -%8 5.00% 609 609 1232 2450 50,967 - 55867 49,000
- Fived rate -&8 880% 50% 511 264916 - - - 275,083 255910
Corporate bonds ARES 703%11.57% 1,783 - 2030 12634 17,288 2002 35,731 2960
Lease liabites EEaE 513%6.29% 60 610 1276 2487 1038 - 6,141 5769

3,349 63% 269454 17,57 69293 2002 676,09 643531
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZEZE_-_ZE_ZTE+_HB=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EFITH &)

Fair values ~EE

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are WIFENTFEAEZTHEERTHERE

not measured at fair value ZRFE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are TREEREHEBEZIAFERRARE

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing BEAENREBRERESMET -ESF

models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The Directors RGN BRFTANBEHR AT ENE
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets MEEAEHMEENREEREAEATEM

and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the o

consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair

values.

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and financial BEGNTEAEZNEFTHEERE

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis HEEZ A TE

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value b LA BFREMS » A FEFERE

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the NTFEFEBNABBEZIRREERAF

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are EFERASEBESHER CEEUHDES
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value — W FRAE=RFBUT
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active D FE—REMAHSBELDERIRFEHH
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can ARz EREEXNEBRGED
access at the measurement date; B2 BmE CREHER) ;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices e FIMWMABEINEENEBZEA
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset T;JF‘aﬁhzTé%%%u)\%@J% (B—#Fr
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and BIEMERIN) 5 &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or e F-MBWABBILIEEXEEBEZF
liability. AR AR

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1k EJt Bk B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET
As at 31 December 2020 R_EZZZF+ZA=+—H
Investment in equity BATESFAEMER
instruments at FVTOC| WAZEATERE 1,171 - - 1,171
As at 31 December 2019 A ZE-NE+ZA=1+—H
Investment in equity BAFESARMEE
instruments at FVTOCI WAZRATAERE 1,224 - - 1,224
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

7.

REVENUE 7. W
2020 2019
—ESBEF TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Revenue from contracts with EEBUHEREENE1SREBEAN
customers within the scope of BEIBESURBERE D2
HKFRS 15, disaggregated by major BEE W -
products or services lines:
Trading Business: B
Sales of electronic products and HEBTFEMK
equipment = 984,666 508,799
Financial Business: TRIZETS
Commission and brokerage income S R &4 WA 12,930 5,727
Advisory and consultancy fee Eab 2,156 3,108
999,752 517,634
Revenue from other sources outside EE BT R EENE155RHE
the scope of HKFRS 15: RBEMRRZ W
Financial Business: B EN
Interest income arising from TREBELEZFEBIA
financial business 7,541 8,377
Property investment: MERE !
Rental income WA 5,875 11,995
13,416 20,372
1,013,168 538,006
Timing of revenue recognition: U S HEED SRS :
At a point in time BRI 999,752 517,634
Over time W& 55 = -
999,752 517,634
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iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

(1)

(2)

(3)

Dealing in securities and futures

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities and futures dealing. Commission income is
recognised at a point in time on the execution date of the
trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value
of the trades executed. The Group also provide handling
service for securities, futures, customer accounts. Fee
income is recognised when the transaction is executed.

Corporate finance advisory

The Group also provides corporate advisory services
to corporate clients for their corporate actions. The
corporate finance advisory income do not provide an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date to the Company as it is unlikely that a customer
can obtain benefit before the Company completes
all its services according to the contract terms of the
agreements signed with customers, the corporate finance
advisory service are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant services are completed.

Sales of electronic products and equipment

Revenue from trading of electronic products and
equipment are recognised at a point in time when the
goods have been delivered to the customer’s specific
location.

Transaction price allocated to remaining
performance obligation for contacts with
customers

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group's existing contracts is HK$1,739,000
(2019: HK$6,643,000). The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future when the goods are delivered to customer,
which is expected to occur within the next 12 months (2019: 12
months).

Wz (&)
HEPIJIGHZEHNEE

(1) EBEBEZHFRHE

FEBRBHSRMEXZRMEL
KRR F R - ABEWATIIN R Z AT
Bz R -—KBMEFRTISZ
REBEZ-EADLEEDB -AEER
Tz HE -FRRPEMHEE
R BRUWAT IR AITR 5 K

(2) REMERMBE

AEBTRAEERTFEHEEES
R UM MERMERETES bE
MEBBRALERZS THRIE
MW RBERATRMBATBREINT
BA REAREAABREREAET AR
5] BY 1 5% BY & A9 1% 7R 5T B EL PR B Bk
Bz ZERAKRAIESESH m
i 1k 2 Fh E R R AR 5 S AR B AR 75 52
PR EETTHEST o

(3) HEBFEMKR

REBFEMERRBEXZZWED
RERIZMTER 24 E i 3 6 i

30

ERENETHRERGFEOTME
ZRFBER

RIE_EFE+_B=+—H &&EEH
HBEENETIEEHRTEANSEZR
S1B48%E 41,739,000 T (ZE—NF :
6,643,000 7T) - AEBBERERRNE
BEERRIHENEBEREG BRIk
128 (ZEE—HE 128) REE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z &

GF+A=+—AILEE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HfthlxA
2020 2019
—EZEF  —_TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Interest income from bank IRITHEUA 1,490 S0
Sundry income FEIEWA 2,557 522
Handling charge income FEEWRA 1,172 590
Government subsidies (Note) gl uR( i) 3,385 -
8,604 1,162
Note: Government grants mainly represent subsidies received in connection Kist: TR EEERESEETHREBFNHE
with the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong MEESEBINENR BN - 52 S BN I HERE R
Kong Special Administrative Region. There are no unfulfilled conditions or BRI AT 4 o
contingencies relating to these subsidies.
9. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES, NET 9. HthWamKE51E3%8
2020 2019
—B-BE  —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Gain on early redemption of IREEL A RRES 2 Wm
convertible bonds = 2,072
Net exchange gain bE 2 U 2 75 KB - 4,388
Impairment loss on property, M- MERHEEZRERE
plant and equipment (36,063) (17,679)
(36,063) (11,219)

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?

160

IR EEREBBRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the nature of the products provided and services
rendered.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group is
organised into four operating and reportable segments — (1)
trading business, (2) mineral mining, oil and gas business, (3)
financial business and (4) property investment. These revenue
streams are the basis of the internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board of
Directors in order to allocate resources to segments and to
access their performance.
Trading business - sales of electronic products
and equipment

Mineral mining, oil -
and gas business

exploration and production of
mineral, oil and gas

Financial business - provision of financial service,
including stockbroking, futures
and options broking, mutual funds,
insurance-linked investment
plans and provision of corporate
financial services and securities
margin financing

Property investment - rental income

10. DEEER

MARARNEFE METBEERRE W
SREDEERAFEDERREZER
DBDEBREFREHERMIGTREBEZ1E
BiEDER-

BE_Z_ZF+_RB=1+—HLEE"
25 62 [ /DY A8 K m] 2 3R 2 $8 A AL — (1)
B2ER ;QWRBE HRER ;QEmMER
ROMELE LEWmDEREETET
HERBRMAERZSEBEN ZABRSE
Z2EE AUHESESEE R KT HZ
DRI

|
i
il
&
N
i
2o
x
RS
o

BREH

B BRRR AR
RREE

R HRES

RUESRRS 2ER
REL HERBEL
£ ERER RS
WREF A RiRHE
ERBERS URES
HRHRE

THES -

MERE - HEE:HRA
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reporting segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

F+A=t—HLEE

10. FEEH (&
DEWmRFER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z &

TR ETERREDEWRERERZD
#r

BE_Z_ZTHES+_A=+—HLEFE

Mineral
Trading mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
PN
BRER HRER ERER MERE g8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET FTHET TAET AT
REVENUE 6
Segment revenue DEWE 984,666 - 22,627 5,875 1,013,168
RESULTS ES
Segment loss NEBE (1,138) (62) (536) (197,913) (199,649)
Corporate administration costs ~ AF{TEEHR (51,433)
Impairment loss on other HiEWER 2 RESE
receivables (264)
Loss before taxation MRIRATEE (251,346)
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iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZEZE_-_ZE_ZTE+_HB=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continuead)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

10. DEEH &
DERmRER (B

BE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLEFE

Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business business investment Consolidated
BSEHR HRE Ea e MERSE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TER THET TR
REVENUE 6
Segment revenue DEWE 508,799 - 17,212 11,995 538,006
RESULTS ES
Segment (loss)/profit N8 (B8 /58 (256) @7) (10,188) 996,859 986,368
Corporate administration costs ~ AE{TEEHR (53,517)
Impairment loss on other HiEWER 2 RESE
receivables (4,487)
Gain on early redemption of REERL SR ESZ WG
convertible bonds 2,072
Profit before taxation BRIRATRF 930,436
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same EENE G R AEB G BEME
as the Group's accounting policies. Segment loss represents FEleniEEIEIELESEABITHERB

the financial results by each segment without allocation of
corporate administration costs. This is the measure reported to
the Board of Directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

MIBDEZWMBEE - BERNAEFEE
BEMZ B UDEERRFERE

Annual Report 2020 ¢« —Z_F4FFIR

163



164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq)

10. ZEEEH (&

Segment assets and liabilities NHEEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities T RAERERDPEEERBEBEZD
by reportable segments: i

At 31 December 2020

\ZE-FHE+"RA=+—H

Mineral
Trading mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
2N
VRS HRER ERER MERE 3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT#ET TAET TAET TAT TAET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 212,513 4 223,144 4,539,125 4,974,786
Unallocated assets REBEE 1,026
Consolidated total assets REEERE 4,975,812
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities NEEE 206,457 474 176,817 449,164 832,912
Unallocated liabilities REEER 446,270
Consolidated total liabilities REaBEEE 1,279,182
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iR e M B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 December 2019

10. SERER (&
PHEEERERE(E

RZ2—h&E+_-_B=+—H

Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business business investment Consolidated
BRER HRER ERER MERE Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FTER FiET TER
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 74,713 4 204,501 4,392,106 4,671,324
Unallocated assets REBEE 741
Consolidated total assets GRBEEMRE 4,672,065
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities DEEE 67,293 499 159,205 378,954 605,951
Unallocated liabilities REHER 393,789
Consolidated total liabilities RHEEREE 999,740

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than

assets of the investment holding companies.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments, other
than amount due to Directors, corporate bonds and

liabilities of the investment holding companies.

RERHERRRHARERT S AT

ail

- BREERQBNEEINFREEE
BENETEEDR-

- BRREZERADHNEMEEHE R

AfEFhAaEIINN FIBEREEDET
EEDE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. DEEER &

HthorEE R

Other segment information

Mineral
mining, oil
Trading and gas Financial Property
business husiness business  investment Total ~ Unallocated  Consolidated
8
BR%H BRER SRER nERE EE 7k aa
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER FEn TER TET
For the year ended 31 December 2020 S_EE+TA=T-HLEE
Amounts included in the measure of ﬁzﬁiﬁ (BB /ERRNEEESA
segment (ossprofitor segment assets: B
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE BRARE 944 - - 73 1,017 - 1,017
Additions to investment properties RERENE - - - 926 926 - 926
Additions to right-of-use assets RERREEE 363 - - 483 846 - 846
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 1% BERRETE 13 - 256 3,905 4174 68 4,242
Depreciation of right of use assets FRREENE 175 - 2,301 13 2,589 - 2,589
Finance costs HHER 7 - 3,646 2 3,675 28,647 32,322
Interest income FIEHA (1,487) - (7,541) ) (9,031) - (9,031)
Impairment loss on financial assets at REHRAGEZERERZAESE
amortised cost, net 28 511 - 107 254 872 - 872
Impairment loss on property, g BERRGAEEE
plant and equipment - - - 36,063 36,063 - 36,063
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas husiness business investment Total Unallocated ~ Consolidated
B5%% BRER SRER nELE af FAE &8
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn FERT TEn TERT TEr FERT TEr
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZ-NETZ H_+ BLFE
Amounts included in the measure of SENERT/ (BB anBEESA
segment profit/(l0ss) or segment assets: 288!
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE BERR - - 3 68 Ul 20 kil
Additions to investment properties RERENE - - - 1611 1671 - 1671
Additions to right-of-use assets REREEEE - - 6,903 - 6903 - 6903
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 1% BRERR&TE 13 - 301 4588 4902 107 5,009
Depreciation of right of use assets FREEERE 179 - 2301 - 2,480 - 2480
Finance costs YHKER - - 4,69 - 4,69 25936 30632
Interest income FIEMA 7) - 8377) Q) (8.427) - (8427)
Impairment loss on financial assets at RESNAHBZ REEZAESS
amortised cost, net #E - - (17) - (17) 4487 4470
Impairment loss on property, NE BRRREAEEE
plant and equipment - - - 17619 17,619 - 17,619
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information
All of the activities of trading business are based in China. The
activities of oil and gas business are based in Madagascar. All of
the activities of the financial business are based in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue and its non-current assets, other than

for construction, statutory deposits and loan receivable and
deferred tax asset, by geographical location of the assets

10. HEEK (&
HEER

BREBZ—UEASHIEPEET AR
EBAHERENHMET sMEHZ
—UESEEBET

RERATESAEMZAERAZRATA
investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI, deposit paid %3
EMIBEEN AEBREECMIBUE
BoHKE 2 N hHIERBEEFFEN

B BERS EAERE BWERKE

regarding its operations are detailed below: T
Revenue Non-current assets
Wz FERBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIEEFE —E-hE ZBIZRE —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET TET
Hong Kong &E 22,627 17,212 3,565 6,188
PRC i 990,117 517,844 2,371,019 2,388,511
Madagascar FEIEMHT 424 2,950 53,138 92,846
1,013,168 538,006 2,427,722 2,487,545
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e TR EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. DHEEF (&
Information about major customer FERXRZEN
Revenue from customers of the years ended 31 December MTFABEZE2FRZE-—AF+Z
2020 and 2019 contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the B=+—HLFELAERBRKZAE10%
Group are generated from trading business as follow: ZEXBERER2ELINE -
2020 2019
—EB-EF —ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Customer A EAH 273,868 130,642
Customer B ®RZ 273,087 287,166
Customer C ZER 110,067 59,302
Customer D Z2ET 138,029 N/A A58 3 *
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total * AE FE U 5 SR A AN S B AB MR AR U 10% L o
revenue of the Group.
There is no other single customer contributing over 10% of total HE_Z-ZEFRIZE—NAF+ZAH
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 —t+t—HEFEE - wEHEME-—FFEM
and 2019. REE LW ZR10%A £ o
11. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF FINANCIAL 1. HEERAAEZEMEEZ
ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST, NET (BERE51E/2%8
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Accounts receivable arising from: BT RIEPRES Z EUERRR :
- cash clients —RBERR (29) (14)
- margin clients —RBEEF (67) )
— trading business —B2ER (358) -
- property investment —ELE (143) -
Loan receivable EWER (11) 33
Other receivable HhFEWERR (264) (4,487)
(872) (4,470)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 12. BAEER
2020 2019
—E-ZTHF —ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHETT
Interest on: UTFEIEHNE
Corporate bonds NEES 2,336 2,061
Borrowings E= 27,106 25,116
Amounts due to directors BT EERIB 2,614 3,237
Lease liabilities HEas 266 218
32,322 30,632
TAXATION 13. #RIE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Current tax; BIHATRIE :
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEIREER 1,270 16
Under-provision in prior year: BEFERERR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BHHEFER 31 -
1,301 16
Deferred taxation: FEIEFRIA
Current year KEE (39,730) 252,937
(38,429) 252,953
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the HREBEZZEZFR_ZT—NF+A
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the relevant group —t+—HIEFEEHEEERZERER
entities have no assessable profits or the assessable profit is wmA WZERR R E 2B A RIE
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for both years. BEIBIRSE MU BN ZMEFETIREE
FIEM o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

13. TAXATION (Continueq) 13.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. No provision for profits
tax is made in other jurisdictions as the subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions have no assessable profits for both years.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

R (&)

RIFEHEARAEMERE R E

EREMZE

7 (ThEMRSRZE) REEMBREZE
FEAR B REM B AR R ZMEEEZR

T7325%°

REMEEEEELE ZRIBIZBEMEE#E
BRITMIXFE -AREHMBEEZEERL
EZWBAR N ZmEFEIEEMER
MG WA EEHEEMBARE ZFE

e o

FERAZGSHEmMEMEEAWRDRZ

PRIRATE IR H AR ¢

2020 2019
—EZEF  _—_TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
(Loss)/profit before taxation FRIRAET (B548) aF| (251,346) 930,436
Taxation charge at the Hong Kong UEAFERE165%E
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 2B H (41,472) 153,522
Tax effect of income not taxable EEZEE TGN
for tax purpose 2B E (371) (35)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses REER TR TR E
not recognised 2B E 91 1,525
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AEOMREAE
for tax purpose ZRBEE 16,404 12,079
Tax effect of temporary differences not ~ KREERERFERZRFTE
recognised 23 -
Tax effect of tax loss utlised EEAREREZNBEEE (17) -
Under-provision in prior year BEFEREBERE 31 -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBAEELE ZHE AT
operating in other jurisdictions TEMEZZE (13,118) 85,862
Taxation for the year FERIE (38,429) 252,953
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e IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

14. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. F£E (85518 adf
2020 2019
—EB-EF —ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
(Loss)/profit for the year has been FE (B8 5 ENER GtA)
arrived at after charging (crediting): THIRIE
Auditor's remuneration ZEENEN & 1,600 1,456
Depreciation of property, ME -BERREITE
plant and equipment 4,242 5,009
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEEITE 2,589 2,480
Staff cost, including Directors’ BTHAE (BIEESFME)
remuneration 31,701 33,453
Contributions to retirement benefits BROREF) FT B HR
scheme 660 706
Cost of inventories recognised as expense FEzRAR> 2 F B/ A 978,482 506,450
Loss from error trades tHER AL 5 B5 18 6 -
Expenses related to short-term leases— FERAGHEE 2 &H—
office premises WANEYE 2,760 3,117
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

15. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS

15. EEREETHAEME

2020
o33
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees HER BAEF  remuneration
ik H{thigF HE A &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTER FTERT FET
Executive Directors WITEE
Hui Chi Ming 1R - 1,200 18 1,218
Neil Bush Ef e it = 643 - 643
Chui Say Hoe (Note f) IR (B - 358 - 358
XuJun Jia Bz = 1,200 18 1,218
CaoYu EF = 1,200 18 1,218
Lam Kwok Hing EEE = 2,808 18 2,826
Nam Kwok Lun A = 984 18 1,002
Hui Ngok Lun (Note g) STl (itg) - 552 9 561
Ren Qian (Note j) 281 (H72)) - 326 - 326
Chen Mailin PR AR - 281 6 287
Independent Non-Executive — BiJERITES
Directors
Ngan Kam Biu, Standford kil 120 - - 120
Chan Tsang Mo (Note @) BRIEE (Wztd) 48 - - 48
Tam Chak Chi (Note g) EEZ (Wate) 120 - - 120
Ma Kin Ling (Note BE Wzl 120 - - 120
Chow Kin Wing (Note h) BEE W5zh) 46 - - 46
454 9,552 105 10,111
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

. BEERETETHAEME (@)

2019
“2-hE
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees Hek BRIRER remuneration
e HiigF AR 1wl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FEx FET FET
Executive Directors HITES
Hui Chi Ming TR - 1,200 18 1,218
Neil Bush EF o Fft - 600 - 600
Chui Say Hoe (Note j) RUA (A7) - 660 - 660
Xu Jun Jia HEE - 1,200 18 1,218
CaoYu EF - 1,200 18 1,218
Lam Kwok Hing EEE - 2,808 18 2,826
Nam Kwok Lun ERfR - 984 18 1,002
Ren Qian (Note j) E71 (H132)) - 600 - 600
Independent Non-Executive i ERITEE
Directors
Ng Chi Kin David (Note &) REE (frita) 76 - - 76
Chen Wei-Ming Eric (Note b) BRERE (H75b) 19 - - 19
Yim Kai Pung (Note ¢) [N (1vatc) 43 - - 43
Ngan Kam Biu, Standford ERIRRY 120 - - 120
Chan Tsang Mo (Note @) BRISE (#5d) 102 - - 102
Tam Chak Chi (Note ) BEZ (Ifite) 44 - - 44
Ma Kin Ling (Note 1) Bz (Wil 77 - - 77
481 9,252 90 9,823

Note a: Mr. Ng Chi Kin David resigned as independent non-executive director of
the Company on 19 August 2019.

Note b. Mr. Chen Wei-Ming Eric resigned as independent non-executive director
of the Company on 25 February 2019.

Note ¢: Mr.Yim Kai Pung resigned as independent non-executive director of the

Company on 10 May 2019.

Note d: Mr. Chan Tsang Mo was appointed and resigned as independent non-
executive director on 25 February 2019 and 25 May 2020 respectively.

Msta: AEBEER_Z—NENBTABHRERR
BBIIFITES

Mab: BREREER _T-NF_A+RBERESR
AEVBIULFRITES

Mizte: REBSENR_ZT-—NFLATAREERRE
BIIFITES-

Miad: BRERAEDINR _Z-—NE_A"+HEHK

TECEZFRA+HARAELZERBESEIIE
HITES-
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15. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Note e: Mr. Tam Chak Chi was appointed as independent non-executive director
on 19 August 2019.

Note - Mr. Ma Kin Ling was appointed as independent non-executive director on
10 May 2019.

Note g Mr. Hui Ngok Lun was appointed as executive director on 16 July 2020.

Note h: Mr. Chow Kin Wing was appointed and resigned as independent non-
executive director on 25 May 2020 and 12 October 2020 respectively.

Note /. Mr. Chui Say Hoe resigned as executive director of the Company on 16
July 2020.

Note . Mr. Ren Qian resigned as executive director of the Company on 16 July
2020.

Note k. Mr. Chen Mailin was appointed and resigned as executive director on 16
July 2020 and 9 October 2020.

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has
waived any emoluments during the year (2019: Nil).

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons’ services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Emoluments of the independent non-executive directors
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Ccompany.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

5. EERFETHAEME @

Miate: BEZHRENR_Z-NFNB+TIBEZES
BIFFRITEE-

Mzt BRERENR_ZF-NFLATAEZERE
VIFRITES-

Mistg: HEBGEER_Z_ZHELE+AEZEA

HITEE-

Mizth: BREBEEESIN_ZT_ZTERA_+HHBR
“ECEFE AT AEZERBEEILIFR
TES-

izt HUMEER _STBFEL A+ SSHEERR
BAITES-

Wi EREER-ZE_EFLATEBREEAT
WTEE-

Miztk: BRERMEEDRNR T _TELA+BRZ

ETEF+ANBEZERBENTES

/NS UNCTEIR SRS YNSRI I RVA S YN
EEEBER MAANEFERNME
REPHEEEAR LD BN AFERNAE
FEREIMNBENABRZEARZ X
PREL-

RmEFER AERBERETANESES
HERME > LRSI EMARERBNER
HEEE RAFERN EFTLERER
Al (CE2E—hE 8| o

AAMRTEEINZHE R REY
BB —RAMEFEALTEERALTRE
MEBARZEBRMZIRT I HAEUR
ZHEe LIMBIFATETNMESEE
BHEREERETADEFRERBIME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

16. EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS 16. EEME
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group REAFER AEBZ A% REHMAL
included four (2019: four) Directors of the Company for the BEOE (ZE2E—NAEFE  OE) ARABE
year, details of whose emoluments are included in note 15. The = HiMsr B HN W15 Heg—% (2
emoluments of the remaining one (2019: one) individual were as T—NF—%) ALZMEWOT:
follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 2,340 2,160
Contributions to retirement BRIRBEHET TR
benefits scheme 18 18
2,358 2,178
The emoluments of one (2019: one) individual with the highest —% (T2 —NF %) 5 AL ZM
emolument is within the following band: ENFETHHER :
2020 2019
Emoluments band i = &5 & —BE-EF —ZTNF
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AE A#
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t 22,500,0007 7T 1 1
1 1
During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the PREFEFEN AEBBERD L A
above-mentioned individuals as an inducement to join or upon NEMAMT  URS|IEMAKXERS A
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. ol {EA BERR BS(E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

17. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. ik (5518 &
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share RABEE NEHERERREE (18)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the S BRATSERTASEE

following data:

2020 2019
—EZBF —ZNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Loss)/earnings: (B518) /&7 .
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to  ALUGTEERER (B18) B>
owners of the Company for the NABHEE ANEILER BB
purpose of calculating basic ikl
(loss)/earnings per share (211,940) 677,713
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: JE{rii &L @ 2 .
— Gain on redemption of — B[O &S 2 W
convertible bonds - (2,072)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to LT ESREE (58 /&BAlzZ
owners of the Company for the NNBEB ANELER (BB
purpose of calculating diluted il
(loss)/earnings per share (211,940) 675,641
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 17. S8k (5548) &BH &)

Number of shares
P& B
2020 2019
—ETEF _"ET—NEFE
‘000 ‘000
T F &
Number of shares: Rin&a :
Weighted average number of BLGIESKRER (B8 &Mz
ordinary shares for the purpose of ZER IR
calculating basic (loss)/earnings
per share 4,000,000 4,000,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B g @R F £
— Convertible bonds — AR ES - 123,807
Weighted average number of RLGTESKREE (518 &Mz
ordinary shares for the purpose of ZiE AR N 98
calculating diluted (loss)/earnings
per share 4,000,000 4,123,807
DIVIDEND 18. IR

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final EETFEEMEMEFERNEBRE

dividend for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ME- -BERSE
Leasehold  Computer Furniture Motor
improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Property Total
HEMERE EliRE GAREE HE M aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FERT FTERT FTERT FERT FERT
COST D%
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—A—H 1,535 6,331 1,827 2,682 130,000 142,375
Additions HE - 187 120 4 - 3N
Exchange adjustment ERRE - 2 o (18) - (25
At 31 December 2019 and ﬁé:?—h&+:ﬁ =+—Bk
at 1 January 2020 RIZEZSF—A—H 1,535 6,520 1,938 2,668 130,000 142,661
Additions /UE - 983 17 17 - 1,017
Exchange adjustment ERRE - 53 ) 55 - 102
At 31 Decermber 2020 S e = 153 7,55 1,949 2,740 130,000 143,780

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION E:HifiERiAE
AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2018 RIZ-\E—-A—-0 1,287 5,909 1,689 1,674 15,168 25,727
Provided for the year EV %* 104 206 63 303 4333 5,009
Impairment AE - - - - 17,679 17,679
Exchange adjustment ERRE - 3 () M) - )
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ-NF+ZA=T—HK

at 1 January 2020 R-E-ZE-A-A 1,391 6,118 1,741 1,976 37,180 48,406
Provided for the year FERE 104 152 77 269 3,640 4,242
Impairment AfE - - - - 36,063 36,063
Exchange adjustment R AR - @ (12) 25 - 9
At 31 December 2020 TECEE+TR=+-0 1,495 6,266 1,806 2,270 76,883 88,720
CARRYING AMOUNTS EEE@
At 31 December 2020 RIBZZE+ZB=+-H 40 1,290 143 470 53,117 55,060
At 31 December 2019 RIE—h&E+ZB=+-8H 144 402 197 692 92,820 94,255
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method at the TEUBGREEUTEERTIR .

following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20% — 33'/3% %H LY E2 20% — 33'/3%
Computer equipment 20% — 50% Bl E 20% — 50%
Furniture and fixtures 20% — 40% R EE 20% — 40%
Motor vehicles 20% — 30% RE 20% - 30%
Property 2% — 5% LY/ ES 2% — 5%
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Impairment assessment

As the Group incurred net loss in the cash-generating unit
(the "CGU") of property investment in Madagascar for two
consecutive years, the management of the Group concluded
there was indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of certain property, plant
and equipment with carrying amounts of HK$53,117,000 (2019:
HK$92,820,000), after taking into account the impairment losses
of HK$36,063,000 (2019: HK$17,679,000). The recoverable
amount of property is estimated individually.

The recoverable amount of CGU has been determined based
on replacement cost method. That calculation uses recent
construction prices for similar properties adjusted for nature,
location and conditions of the property, which United States
dollar 1,249 per square metre (“Sgm”) as at 31 December 2020.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amounts of the CGU
is lower than the carrying amounts. The impairment amount
has been allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment such that the carrying amount of each category of
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost
of disposal, its value in use and zero. Based on the fair value less
cost of disposal calculation and the allocation, an impairment
of HK$36,063,000 (2019: HK$17,679,000) has been recognised
against the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment.

19. ME - -BEKR=E @&

A= T

FR 7% A B [ 5 S 2 00 347 0 228 4 T 181 4F EZ
MERENREELBEU(REELE
i) EEFBE cEEEEER/ED
RRETRIEHREE G5t RRERE
36,063,000/ 7t (ZZ— N4 17,679,000
B7T)) 453,117,000 T (ZE—HF :
92,820,000787T) HE TV BB K& HE
B U (o] s B8 #E 17 R0 (B 5T 1 o ) 22 B9 BT Uk )
ERRFIEB/EEt o

HREEEBMNTKREZBEESZE NN
REAET ZTERBEUMERYEN
B M ERRRIERAEZ AR S B
N _ETEE+_HA=+—HAEFHK
(M K1) 1,249% 550

BEBEFIEER AEECTEERTREE
FEUNTREISBEENREE RES
HESREESENE -BERFZE FEIL
ZHEENREAEIRABEERRER
FTEREERS HEAEERTZHNRS
B BRRAFEREERASFERDA
EYE -BERRBENREERIDRE
36,063,000 7T (ZZF— N5 : 17,679,000
BIT) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

20. REYE

HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2019 S ZE—NF—B—H 1,416,547
Addition AR 1,671
Fair value change N EES 1,011,747
Exchange adjustment bE 2SR (42,368)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ2—hF+ZA=+—H 2,387,597
Addition AR 926
Fair value change NEEES) (158,920)
Exchange adjustment bE S 139,069
At 31 December 2020 N2 F+HA=+—H 2,368,672

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Investment properties comprise of (a) a commercial units
and car parking spaces located in the Beijing, PRC and (b)
commercial units and car parking spaces located in Zhanjiang,
PRC.

Property-located in Beijing, PRC

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2020 have been determined based on a valuation
carried out on that day by InsideOut Due Diligence Inc., an
independent qualified professional valuer that is not connected
with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Direct Comparison
Method”, where the value is assessed by assuming sale in their
existing states with the benefit of vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales evidence as available in
the relevant market.

The lease typically run for an initial period of 2 years (2019: 1
year).

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?

NEERERBEEHEEFFURRET
BEXREENYEEaIRBAFERNAG
8> URDBER/RARIEREDE -

BEMEOF@QUNPREILRZEHEBN
BB RO RBE Iz EmEEURE
fiL

WE— U P EIER

XEERZZEZHF+HA=+—HZ
BWEMERFETHAKRE BT & E
ZEIEBEREZEMERINSideOut Due
Diligence INCIZEH Z(HEEE °

ATEDRTERLEE B MABE
DERUERREELERZ2REBAT S
RS2 A B L BIHEREEMTE

BENNER—RAME CT-F ' —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZEZE_-_ZE_ZTE+_HB=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Property-located in Zhanjiang, PRC

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2020 have been determined based on a valuation
carried out on that day by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer that is not connected
with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Direct Comparison
Method”, where the value is assessed by reference to the
comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant market
and have also taken into account the expended construction
costs as well as the costs that will expended to complete the
developments.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
comprise:

Properties in PRC: REE
Medium-term lease FHEATEE

20. IREYIE (&

W= — (IR EET

FXERR_ZZ2F+"A=+—H2%
ﬁ%%@ﬁ%ﬁmﬁ$%ﬂim%Lz%

BERBELEMABRITERADR
EEZEﬁEEO

AFEDZETERLEBE BEE MEEE
T2 REMTIS IR/ ELLRIFERIE
MmetE  FEFREXHZEEMNERT

MBS Mo
R ENE Y A B

2020 2019

—g-®F —T-N%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

2,368,672 2,387,597

The fair value measurements for all of the Group's investment
properties are categorised as level 3. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2020 are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements
are categorised level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

REBPBAREMEZ A TFEFE2E DS
BE=He TREHUNABTREWER
T ECEFEA+ A=+ —HZAFEZE
B R 2 EERM R A Z @A SR

MREIREBEAFESEH AR 2 T HRRiE
EREATEFEMBAFTESERAFE=
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

20. IREYIE (&

Fair value Fair value
as at asat Valuation Relationship of
Fair value 31 December 31 December  technique & Significant unobservahle
Properties hierarchy 2020 2019 key input unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
RZIEZ%E RIZ-NE
+ZB=+-A2 +IA=+-Hz fHERHR EATAER FOBRHABE
IES ATERR ATE ATE TEBASE BAHE BATEZMHE
Property - located in Beijing, PRC  Level3 HK$388,443,000 HK$515,451,000  Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using market An increase in the price per square foot wil
direct comparable and taking into increase significantly the fair value, and
The key input is price per square account location and other individual vice versa.
foot factors such as age and location of the
property, approximately RMB43,300
(2019: RMB87,000) per square foot
and approximately RMB703,000 (2019:
RMB900,000) per car park Space as at 31
December 2020
WEIRPELR E=4 388,443,000 515451000 EELEE %‘Jﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁth@i%%ﬁ%&%%ﬁ STHRERELABAR ENATE
BT AEr REMENER FNNENERRY  RZTAe
FTEHAYEA ) REZETARER MR-5Z
STRRER gﬁﬂ-_ﬂj— HEFARAAR
4330078 (ZZ— N AR 87,000
7o) REEE{IH ARE7030007 (2
F—AE T AEH900,0007T)
Property - located in Zhanjiang, ~ Level3 HK$1,980,229,000  HK$1,872,146,000 Direct comparison method Market unit rate, taking into account Asignificant increase in the market unit
PRC the recent transaction prices for similar  rate used would result in a significant
The key input is price per square properties adjusted for nature, location ~ increase in fair value, and vice versa.
foot and conditions of the property, which
RMB10,771 (2019 RMB8,871) per sqm as
at 31 December 2020.
Estimation of construction cost of Asignificant increase in the construction
RMB3,840 (2019: RMB2,675) per sqmas  cost used would resutt in a significant
at 31 December 2020 decrease in far value, and vice versa
Expected developer profit margin Asignificant increase in the expected profit
at 15% (2019: 15%) as at 31 December  would result in a significant decrease in
2020. fair value, and vice versa.
WEIRPEET =R 1,980,229,000 1872146000 EfLEE THERE EHRELMENELE . FRAZTREBARLAREIAT

B B
IRE\UBEAETARER

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in

prior year.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into

or out of level 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZEZE_-_ZE_ZTE+_HB=+—HILFE
21. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 21. ERHEEE
Office
MA=E
HKS
BT
COST R
At 1 January 2019 RIZE—hF—HF—H 7,039
Addition AR 6,903
Disposal HE (6,725)
Exchange adjustment bE 2 SR (6)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R_ZE—HAE+_A=+—HBA_E_ZE5—HF—H 7,211
Additions AR 846
Disposal HE (310)
Exchange adjustment bE 2 S 49
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZ2F+"H=+—H 7,796
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NhF—F—H 5,765
Charge for the year FRZH 2,480
Disposal HE (6,725)
Exchange adjustment bE 2 5 22 2
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R_-ZE—HAE+_B=+—HBE_ZE-_ZTF—F—H 1,518
Charge for the year FRAZH 2,589
Disposal HE (310)
Exchange adjustment b 7 SE 2R 9
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZEF+"F=+—H 3,806
CARRYING AMOUNTS: IREE -
At 31 December 2020 N2 CEF+"A=+—H 3,990
At 31 December 2019 RIZ2—NF+ZA=+—H 5,693
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

21.

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS (Continueq)

21. FREEE &)

2020 2019

—B-RF _—ZE-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Expense relating to short-term leases BRIGHEENRY 2,760 3,117
Total cash outflow for leases (including HAERSMERZE (BEEHHEE

short-term leases) 5,595 5,842

For both years, the Group leases an office for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 to 3
years (2019: 2 to 3 years). Certain leases of equipment were
accounted for as finance leases and carried interest ranged is
5.13%-11.33% during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
5.13%-6.29%). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

The Group entered into short-term leases for office premises
during the year ended 31 December 2020. As at 31 December
2020, the outstanding lease commitments relating to the office
premises are HK$810,000 (2019: HK$810,000).

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?

Eéfﬁflﬁrt‘*m AREBRERAERR
PN EEHRA2EIE (ZZT—N
E 2I3E)Z%H‘EA%7 CHREEZZTC
ZFE+ZA=t+—HULEFE EFTXRHER
BEARIMEMEBERE  FENF5.13%E
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BB R R R o NE BB G A A
HHAENEER  AEEERSONTE
RIEEEAT] R FITHHIME

AEBRBE_ZE_EFE+A=+—
HIEEEMRMRAZESBAATILLRBEHEE R
TEIEFE+ZHA=+—H ERAES
FrA BRI M R B 1T B &£ %810,000% 7T
(ZZ— N4 1 810,000 7T) °

BREEREEBFRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ER R M5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZEZE_-_ZE_ZTE+_HB=+—HILFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

22. B EE

= .AH
ARE

Mineral Trading
mining right rights Total
IRUEE R I=E:3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
COST [N
At 1 January 2019, A ZE-NEFE—B—A-
31 December 2019 and —E-AEF+“BE=+—HK
1 January 2020 —E-FF—HF—H 12,012 50 12,062
Written off isH (12,012) - (12,012)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZ2F+-F=+—H - 50 50
AMORTISATION HhiH
At 1 January 2019, \_g hE—A—H-
31 December 2019 and E-NEF+_A=+—HBxK
1 January 2020 _EEF—HF—H 12,012 50 12,062
Written off b= (12,012 - (12,012
At 31 December 2020 A _E_EFE+_H=+—H - 50 50

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2020

fREfE
R_EF_TE+_B=1+—H

At 31 December 2019

RZZE-—NAFE+ZB=+—H

Trading rights represent two trading rights in the Stock Exchange
and one trading right in Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had one mining right
under the License 253 in respect of Kenya Mine 253, an area of
approximately 1,056 square kilometers situated in Kitui District

Eastern Province, Kenya.

The License 253 of the mineral mining right has expired during

year.

REEEBMIFAZMEXZEREBRE

RBFABRABZ —ERXFH# -

AT E-HE+_B=+—H0 > KEEIR
BEBEREEE2535EIE 2 525355
AERE —ERER ZBEGBUNSER
B EP BB 4E SR M & (Kitui District Eastern

Province) »

EFE#I1,056F H AR o

PRUBERYSB 2535k ST Rl B E RN FE AN E W ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

23. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

23. RIERIE (B&E) &R

UTREHREMSELERBLERF 2D

financial reporting purposes: #r:
2020 2019
—BEBH —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E (17,818) -
Deferred tax liabilities FIEIRIBE B (& 346,724 349,227
328,906 349,227

The following is deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the year ended 31 December 2020:

UFAREE 224+ -_8B=+—H
LEEMRBIRIERIE (BE) a6 RHE

4

=

Fair value
changes
on investment
properties
KREME
NEEEH
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2019 S TE—NF—HF—H 102,224
Charged to profit or loss PEm AR 252,937
Exchange realignment PE R sRE (5,934)

At 31 December 2019 and RZE2E—hhF+ZA=+—HBK
at 1 January 2020 “ETEHF—H—H 349,227
Charged to profit or loss R0k (39,730)
Exchange realignment PE S0 oA EE 19,409
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZEF+ZHF=+—H 328,906
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

23. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$32,219,000 (2019:
HK$31,772,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
unused tax losses as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

24. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise:

23. REMRIE (BE) &\ @)

RBERR ZREEBNABHGHTRE
E538497432,219,0008 T (ZE—HF :
31,772,000 7t) AIMHIEEE R AEF) o AL
RRAERERREF A ARIKHE RS F
MBEE R ES DR REARBEER

RIEIERIEBE E - R B E 1B ] EIR A
B o

24. BRFESFARMEEBAZER
TTAEKE

BATEFAREMEERAZRETAR
BEEE

2020 2019
—E-EF ZZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Listed investments: EHRE

- Equity securities listed on Hong Kong —REBBZ T LT 2 RAE S
Stock Exchange 1,171 1,224
1,171 1,224

The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares
of an entity listed in Hong Kong. These investments are not
held for trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic
purposes. The directors of the Company have elected to
designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI
as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in these
investments'’ fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent
with the Group's strategy of holding these investments for long-
term purposes and realising their performance potential in the
long run.

FERARESRBEA LT ERZER
o ZERELFRRXZMER - ME
REMRBENOMEITE - ARARAE
SHE EIRFRERBRZRRZA
FEZEHEPEAEES/REANTE
ZERBLEBERAEREEERE ZKBET
7 ANEBREBZSERATARERE
RN TFEFAEMEEEA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

25. STATUTORY DEPOSITS

25. FEEHRE

2020 2019
—EZEF —ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deposits with: BERR AR ZFIE
The Stock Exchange of EERMERZMBRATE
Hong Kong Limited 230 230
The Securities and Futures Commission 5 RHIEEHRERELSES = 2,100
HKSCC 5R%E 200 200
Reserve Fund Contribution to HKFECC ERPEEEZ mESHR 1,500 1,500
1,930 4,030
26. LOAN RECEIVABLE 26. FEIRER
2020 2019
—EBCEF  —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Fixed-rate loan receivable MINpEE AT E
denominated in functional ZEBREWER
currency of Hong Kong dollars 15,890 1,992
Carrying amount analysed ARG ZREE
for reporting purposes: SR
Current assets (receivable REEE (JERSHE
within 12 months from B+ 1@ 8 mURED
the end of the reporting period) = -
Non-current assets (receivable ERFEE (TERSHR
after 12 months from the end B+ 1@ 8 % UKED
of the reporting period) 15,890 1,992
15,890 1,992
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

LOAN RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Loan receivable with a carrying amounts of approximately
HK$15,890,000 (2019: HK$1,992,000) is secured by properties
located in Hong Kong. The Group is not permitted to sell or
repledge the property in the absence of default by the customer.

The effective interest rates (which are equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group's loan receivable was 6.59% per
annum (2019: 8.50%). Interest rate term is fixed at the time when
entering into loan agreement. The period of the loan was 5 years
(2019: 5 years).

PROPERTIES FOR SALE

Properties under development for sale FEERPYME

26.

27.

ERWER (&

ARME1E497315,890,000/8 7T (ZZE—HF !
1,992,000 70) 2 BWERUUREEZ
MEERF - EZRUEENZBERT
AEENSHENBRERZDE -

NEEEVRERZERFX (EREGHF
K) AEE6.59% (ZB— 5% :8.50%) o F]
REFRRIT U BRI ERET -EXEA

EFE(CE-AFE BH -

HEME
2020 2019
—E-®F —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T B
1,921,997 1,809,871

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has five lands
located in Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development
Zone in Guangdong Province, the PRC. The Group plans to
develop residential properties, serviced apartments for sales
and the relevant development plan had been approved by
authority in PRC.

ACECFER-F-ALET-A=+—
B > A4 B i 10 o B R TS
RFHYE 2T o AR E BB
ETMERBHX AWMU E > 2120
ET Y Lo L poE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

28.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

28. FEUNERTR

=+

2020 2019
—ECZEHF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Accounts receivable consist of: FEWER R BIETAIER !
Accounts receivable arising from BTERMARBEZERMEL
business of trading electronic Z EURERRR
products and equipment 24,126 24,786
Less: Loss allowance for ECL iz FERREERIB BIREE (358) -
23,768 24,786
Accounts receivable arising from YRR E ETEFTE L 2 EURERRR
business of properties investment 4,748 368
Less: Loss allowance for ECL ik FEEEERIB BB E (143) -
4,605 368
Accounts receivable arising from the B S EBES 2 EWERRR
business of dealing in securities:
— cash clients —RBEEF
- other —HAth 15,802 6,544
— directors —E=E 4,337 516
Less: Loss allowance for ECL iz FERREERIB BIRE S (40) (11)
20,099 7,049
- HKSCC —E5BEE 8,777 540
HKFECC arising from the business of EEHESNEBMELEZEI
dealing in futures contracts SRMEHEBRM 700 1,368
Loans to securities margin clients AT ESREERPRZEMN 57,459 72,395
Less: Loss allowance for ECL ik FEEREERIB BB E (31) (34)
57,428 72,361
Accounts receivable arising from R E IR ERTE S 2 AR
the business of advisory for
financial management 561 212
115,938 106,684
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continueq)

Accounts receivable from the business of
trading electronic products and equipment

A credit period based on dates of delivery of goods for accounts
receivable from trading of electronic products and equipment
within 90 days. The aged analysis of accounts receivable arising
from trading of electronic products and equipment based on the
invoice date at the reporting period is as follow:

0-90 days 0ZE90H

28. FEURERTR (2

REEFERRRBEZEBZE
U AR RR

REBFEMMRHBES ZBBERMIER
NEmBHFtEZEERR0BR - KH
BEFEMARBESNRESERRER
M2 Z BUESRRMZ BRE DA T ¢

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
23,768 24,786

Accounts receivable from the investment
property business

The average credit period for accounts receivable from
investment property business within 30 days. The aged analysis
of accounts receivable arising from investment property
business based on the invoice date at the reporting period is as
follow:

RERBEMEES Z IR

REREMEEB L BUERRZFHIEER
HRI0EA - REREMEEB ZBUIR
MRS AMRERARE2I ZEREDN
LI

2020 2019

—B-®F -—T A%

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR T

0-90 days 0£90H 1,582 368
91— 180 days 912 180H 3,023 -
4,605 368
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 28. FEWRERTR (&

Accounts receivable from cash client, HKSCC,
HKFECC

The settlement terms of accounts receivable from cash clients,
HKSCC, HKFECC are usually one to two days after the trade
date. Except for the accounts receivable from cash clients as
mentioned below, the accounts receivable from HKSCC and
HKFECC aged within 30 days.

The settlement terms of cash clients are usually one to two days
after the trade date. The aged analysis of accounts receivable

arising from cash clients is as follows:

Accounts receivable from cash clients

0-90 days 0ZE90H

REREER -BEREGEREEN
BEE Z BRUARTR

REFFR BBEEREBHELEERIK
ERRZEEHREEAXZERE—EM
HeB T XPRtEWIRE R PRI B
WEBEEREBHEGEHERMZARERE
#30B A

ReFPZEENBERXZARE—=
MA-FHEEFREEZBBRRZRESD
s

FEIIRER R IRM
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
20,099 7,049

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balances and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously.

EAREEERA KA D AITRNIEHE SRR
jt?%ﬂ)(i%ﬁ%ﬁ%*%ﬁﬂﬁ BIRAEER AT
A B SIS T RWARR R BT IRTR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZEZE_-_ZE_ZTE+_HB=+—HILFE

28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continueq)

Loans to securities margin clients

Loans to securities margin clients are repayable on demand
and bear interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank
plus 3% equivalent to 8.25% per annum for both years. In
the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is disclosed as
the aged analysis does not give additional value. The loans
are secured by pledged marketable securities at fair value of
approximately HK$195,242,000 (2019: HK$236,963,000). The
average percentage of collateral over the outstanding balance
as at 31 December 2020 is ranged from 81% to 2,415% (2019:
136% t0 6,223%). The fair value of pledged marketable securities
of the individual margin clients is higher than the corresponding
outstanding loans. The Group is permitted to sell or repledge
the marketable securities if the customer default the payment
as requested by the Group. The Group had provided the loss
allowance for securities margin clients with reference to the
portfolio held and the subsequent settlement of each customer.

Accounts receivable from the business of
advisory for financial management clients

The Group does not provide any credit term to its advisory for
financial management clients. The aged analysis of accounts
receivable arising from the business of advisory for financial
management clients is as follow:

0-90 days 0ZE90H

28. FEURBRTR (2

MTEFFRETERZER

MY BSRESZTPZEREANREXRE
EEKREBRITARSEREEFNEMI%
(MEFEHBRERFF X8.25%) 5t
E-BEEIA BARKRBEINILERZ
AUt ERR UL FEETHRE - ERUA
FE#I195,242,0008 T (ZE—NEF
236,963,000% 7t) 2 BIRIFMIEE F1EHE
R-RZIZBEZZEF+ZA=+—H k@&
BEGZEFRZFHEEDENF8I1%E
2,415% (ZE—HF 1 136%%E6,223%) © 1@
MREBSEFZEBBERBES 2 AFEE
BREEREEER AEREENETR
HRAEEMERNIERS L NBEAER
BES AEBC2EZRSRETER
REZREBEAGRERBRGENR L MBS
REEEOTIREBEE

REMBEESAAZBERZER
BRTX

AEETEAVHEREAETTFEM
EREER MBEEEAXBERELE
Z IR Z BREC D ATA0 T ¢

2020 2019
—E-EF ZZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
561 212
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

29.

30.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND
DEPOSITS

29. HtFEUWARTR ~ FRTRIERIZE

2020 2019

—E-BF —ZTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Other receivables H M E AR 10,200 16,529
Advance to suppliers arising from RESGEBEE .

trading business 6] FE 7 BN 11,008 46,278

Rental and other deposits HErHEMZE 88,160 12,893

Prepayments SEINE O 366 363

109,734 76,063

PLEDGED FIXED DEPOSITS, BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged fixed deposits (general accounts)

The pledged fixed deposits represented the amounts pledged
to banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. The pledged fixed deposits carry interest rates at 1.80% -
4.10% (2019: 0.225%) per annum and will be released upon the
expiry of the relevant banking facilities. Included in pledged fixed
deposits (general accounts) is approximately HK$171,058,000
(2019: HK$5,264,000) which is denominated in US$, a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

Bank balances (trust and segregated
accounts)

From the Group's ordinary business, it receives and holds
money deposited by clients in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities. These clients” monies are maintained in one
or more segregated bank accounts and bear prevailing market
deposit rates ranging from 0.01% t0 0.1% (2019: 0.01% to 0.1%)
per annum. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients. However, the Group
does not have a currently enforceable right to offset those
payables with the deposits placed.

30. ERREREFER  RITEFR

RE
ERFEHRFR (—HRERP)

EEFERFTRIEANEAER—RIE
TREMARTEHZEFSE SR
EHRERZHERLHEF1.80%EL10% (T
T—NF 10.225%) N ARRITRES
HEMBFR -t ABERERER (—RIK
F) Z2#9171,058,0008 7t (Z&—h4&F
5,264,00078 7T) UIFHERERE B Z ThAE
ERETIE

IR (ERERBILRF)

AEERABEBETREE LMW
WHREERZER - ZEERZHERFA
—ERNZEBILIRITERA WIZBITHEEF
FHENFEF0.01%E0.1% (ZF—Hh
F:10.01%=E0.1%) 5t B - AEFEHEDE
BERERZABERM AT > A& ERE
B AT AR FRIEHEZERMR

=+
o
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31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)
Bank balances (general accounts) and cash

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits carrying prevailing market deposit rates at 0.01%
(2019: 0.01%) per annum with an original maturity of three
months or less. Included in bank balances (general accounts)
and cash are approximately HK$539,000 (2019: HK$5,801,000)
and HK$173,806,000 (2019: HK$2,098,000) and which are
denominated in US$ and RMB respectively.

30. ERREHER RITEFR
RE (&)

IRITHETF (—RRBRP) RRE

LEEEEAEBRFTEZRERBRGT
TEERMEEE0.01% (ZT—HEF .
0.01%) st EARIBAAB=ZEAIUT
2T ER ST ARTEE (—RER
B) RI& 2 #9539,0008 T (CB—NE
5,801,0007 7T) 5%173,806,000& 7T (Z &
— L& 2,098,000 7T) B RIMETRA

RiH&3E-
ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 31. EIRFRRERE
2020 2019
BB —ZENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Accounts payable from trading of BEFrERARBEZER
electronic products and equipment FTE £ FE{TBR X 27,448 60,180
Accounts payable from properties MEKEFESBAR™MR
investment 6,903 6,500
Accounts payable arising from the BERSEFMELENMIRAN .
business of dealing in securities:
— Cash clients —RBERR 94,508 79,890
- HKSCC — BB 3,671 1,399
Accounts payable to clients arising BEEHEANEBMELEZ
from the business of dealing in ANEI=E
futures contracts 985 2,139
Amounts due to securities margin clients fEf:E & FREEHT LA NIE 4,878 5,052
138,393 155,160
Bills payable ANt 175,502 -
313,895 155,160
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31. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

(Continueq)

The settlement term of accounts payable to cash clients and
HKSCC is two days after the trade date and aged within 30 days.

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of dealing
in futures contracts are margin deposits received from clients
for their tradings of futures contracts on HKFECC. The excess
of the outstanding amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated by HKFECC are repayable to clients on demand. In
the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is disclosed as the
aged analysis does not give additional value.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.

The accounts payable amounting to approximately
HK$92,355,000 (2019: HK$83,766,000) were payable to clients
or other institutions in respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients in the course of the
conduct of regulated activities. However, the Group does not
have a currently enforceable right to offset these payables with
the deposits placed.

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

BARMRERZER (&)

BNREEFPREBEERRZEEHIR
B/ AREWAE > HREA30HM

EEHNEGNEBEEZRANEREK
FONB/RMREBREEEEEHEAN
AERWRZFEEE AMEEMRBLES
BHEEEFMREREEZ ZHEBAANENR
REETFTER EEFRNA BRKREDH
i F 0 AL R BLUL (F R 4R EE o

BNRBSRESETPNBEANREREE
BoBERN ANKREROFTLESE
I 7 458 S LG A'F HE AR ) 4R B8 o

RETSRETHNERPRE P BN
BEARBURTHEGTMENERHEM
18 2 FE (T IR 749 492,355,00058 75 (&
— L5 183,766,000 7T) © FAT » AN EEEIIR
B AR ] AT MU IR Z S eI ER

=+
o

IR EEREBBRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

31. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES
(Continued)

Accounts payable from trading of electronic
products and equipment

The aged analysis of amounts payable from trading of electronic
products and equipment presented based on the receive date is

31.

ETERTRKRER (&
REEFEMRRBEZEBHZE
13 ARTR

REBFEMRRFBEEZEHZBMAIRM
RWW A2 2 RE DT

as follow:
2020 2019
—EZBF —ZNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0-90 days 0&90H 17,451 53,027
91 - 180 days 91E180H - 2,200
181 — 365 days 1812365H 2,402 4,876
over 365 days 365HM £ 7,595 77
27,448 60,180

Accounts payable from properties investment

The aged analysis of accounts payable from properties

REMEREZBARR

REMEREZBNRRZIRE DU

investment is a follows: T
2020 2019
=B-FF T NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
0-90 days 0&90H - _
91 - 180 days 91£2180H 6,903 6,500
6,903 6,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 32. HithE(TERFARFEEH &
EXPENSES
2020 2019
—E-EF  ZENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FHET
Other payables HtEM I 22,847 25,742
Accrued expenses FESTE 19,657 13,023
Receipts in advance from B2 EH 2 EWEIE
trading business 14 14
42,518 38,779
33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. tHE&E
The exposure of the Group's lease liabilities are as follows: AREEBHREEGEZ ARMOMNT :
2020 2019
—E-BHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Current mEn 2,707 2,377
Non-current JEMED 1,377 3,392
4,084 5,769
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

33. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

33. HERE &

Minimum lease Present value of
payments lease liabilities
RIERELR HEaRRAE
2020 2019 2020 2019

ZEIEE T fE IZBIZE _—T-AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Minimum lease payment due: RUTKEIBEzREEEMHR:
— Within one year ——FR 2,872 2,618 2,707 2,377
—more than one year but not ——FRERERN
more than two years 1,405 2,487 1,377 2,369
—more than two years but not —MEBRBLER
more than five years - 1,036 - 1,023
4,277 6,141 4,084 5,769
Future finance charges RRHERT (193) (372)
Present valug of lease liabilities HEBERE 4,084 5,769
Amounts due for settlement within one year —ERZIEA (2 B
(shown under current liabilities) (RREEBE TR (2,707) (2,377)
Amounts due for settlement after one year —E#EIHIX (2 T8 1,377 3,392

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to
lease liabilities range from 5.13% to 11.33% (2019: from 5.13%
t0 6.29%.)

ERARESaBZNETHIEEEHRAE
NF513EEIN1.33E (ZE—HE NP
5.13EE6.29F) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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e 3
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 34. EH&EE
2020 2019
—E-TF  ZZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT
Trading electronic products ETERES 1,739 6,643

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TR A ERE DAY I & R 0 Bl LA

in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities BENBERNBTHABERNBENET
and how much relates to performance obligations that were BEREANEEE -
satisfied in prior periods.
Trading electronic
products
BFfERES
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January w—HB—H 6,643 -
Decrease in contract liabilities as aresult of ~ RUTFTFEMEEZ GHEERD
- revenue recognised that was included —STAFVENEBEEHRN
in the contract liabilities balance B3
at the beginning of the year (6,643) -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AU TEEMEE 2 GHNEEIE
- receipts in advance of trading electronic —BTFEmEBZZENFIE
products 1,739 6,643
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 1,739 6,643

FAEERNERXMVERRFEZARERZ
AR > FRETR ISR R12B R (TF—
FI12ER) mEE-

The Group will recognise the expected revenue in future when
the goods are delivered to customer, which is expected to occur
within the next 12 months (2019: 12 months).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

Amounts due to Directors of which approximately
HK$57,851,000 (2019: HK$51,897,000) are unsecured, interest
bearing at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank (2019: Hong
Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank) per annum and are repayable
on demand. The remaining balance are unsecured, repayable on
demand and non-interest bearing.

Confirmation from directors that they would not demand
repayment of the amounts due to Directors of approximately
HK$143,578,000 within one year from the date of this report.

35.

T ESRRIE

FE{HE ERIEE F457,851,000 7t (=
F— 4 1 51,897,000 B T) & EIKIA - %
RITFIRNEEREEMNE (CZ—haE:
IRITABRNEBREEFNNX) SFFER
BREREBE - BRIEHAEIET AR
BREBRFTE

BEERD O BEATERBARES HEE
H—EREEEMNESRIEL143,578,000
BT

BORROWINGS 36. BE
2020 2019
—E-%F T NHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Borrowing = 395,082 304,910
Secured P=Fisgiii 264,743 255,910
Unsecured gl 130,339 49,000
395,082 304,910
Current portion BOERER 7> 318,200 255,910
Non-current portion JERPEREL 76,882 49,000
395,082 304,910
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

36. BORROWINGS (Continued) 36. 88 (@)
The Group's borrowings are repayable as follows: NEBMZEEBEEENT .
2020 2019
—E-EF  —ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within 1 year —FRN 318,200 255,910
After 1 year but within 2 years —EmF 21,382 -
After 2 years but within 5 years MERF 55,500 49,000
After 5 years hF%E = -
395,082 304,910
The movement of borrowings is as follows: BEEZEHNT .
2020 2019
—E-BF ZEZENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January w—EBE—H 304,910 320,530
Proceeds from new borrowings MEEREHRIE 146,869 99,000
Accrued interests FEEHF] B 27,106 25,116
Interests paid BAHE (18,272) (23,715)
Repayment B (69,500) (116,021)
Exchange realignment R Eed 3,969 -
At 31 December Hr+ZA=+—H 395,082 304,910
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has borrowing of N _E2_FEF+_A=+—H > &x&H
approximately HK$264,744,000 (2019: HK$255,910,000) which ZEE#264,744,000 Bt (ZE— N5 .
was secured by the entire registered capital of Beijing Yinghe 255,910,00087T) AU R EE B B2 BN B
Property Development Limited, an indirect wholly-owned NEALRBNEMEGEREERARZ
subsidiary of the Group, and guaranteed by Guangdong Hoifu SEHEAMEARERF TUERIEEE
Wai Yip Investment Management Limited and the personal NEBEERABDKTE®WELT AR
guarantee from Dr. Hui Chi Ming. The borrowing is fixed-rate RIEER - BEERBFZEEFET%TE
interest at 7% for the first year and 8% for the period after 1 M—F BRI B - BEZERENES
year. The effective interest rate of the borrowing is 8.8% per 8.8% o NN B EIHAE B 4973264,744,0007
annum. The borrowings of approximately HK$264,744,000 have JT o

matured during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZEZE_-_ZE_ZTE+_HB=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has borrowing
HK$55,500,000 (2019: 49,000,000) was unsecured which
borrowed from Asia Tele-Net, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with its shares being listed on the Stock Exchange in
which two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok
Lun, have controlling interests. The borrowing is fixed-rate
interest at Hong Kong Prime rate of 5.13% (2019: 5.13%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has borrowing
RMB63,000,000 from three independent third parties with
fixed-rate interest was ranged from 6%-12% per annum. The
borrowings of approximately HK$53,457,000 have matured up
to this report.

CORPORATE BONDS

Unsecured corporate bonds EIREABRES

36. fHE (&

A BT F+ZRA=+—H KEH

2 855,500,000 B (ZE—HFE:
49,000,000 7T) 7 FIKIF > HIm MG (—
B EREZEEMAILZ AT HRRMD P
R LT MEEFEEELERER R
TEBBHERER) RH ZBEERES
REBRBEEENE513% (CT—HE:513
%) 5TE o

A ZETEF+ A=+ —H AEEN
BEEFENF6%-12%0E =L BILE=
FHERARMEE3,000,0007c B EARRE H
#H > 4953,457,0008 I EE B IR

37. AEIES

2020 2019
—g-®F —T-N%
HK$'000 HK$'000
T B
30,176 29,621

The Group’s corporate bonds are repayable as follows:

FrEBZEERABESFUT

2020 2019

—E-BF —ZE-NE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —FR 11,775 -
After 1 year but within 2 years —EmMF 14,628 11,771
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREF 3,773 16,014
After 5 years A% - 1,836
30,176 29,621
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

37. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued) 37. REIESF (B)
The movement of corporate bonds is as follows: NEEFEEHUWT -
2020 2019
BB ZIENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
As at 1 January w—E—H 29,621 19,560
Proceeds from new borrowings MEBMERIE - 8,000
Accrued interests FESTHI 2 2,336 2,067
Interests paid [SENpIFS (1,781) -
As at 31 December R+ZB=+—H 30,176 29,621
No addition bonds were issued during the year ended 31 BE_E_ZF+_B=1+—HL=EE"
December 2020. R EE T REIME S ©
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group issued BHE_Z-NAF+A=+—HLFE"
bonds with a principle amount in a total of HK$8,000,000 carried REEZEITAREE S 8,000,000 T2 &
interest at 7% per annum. The bonds are unsecured with Fo BEFEIRTE - BEHAEIEIF > ME
maturity date falling on 3 years of the issue date. HEHABRETHIAEF M3FEH -
The effective interest rate of the bonds is ranging from 7.03% to BHEZEREFZENF7.03%E11.57% (=
11.57% per annum (2019: 11.57% per annum). Z—NF D FFF11.57%) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. fig#x
Number of
shares
BHEAR
‘000 HK$'000
TR T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EREEI10E T @R
Authorised: ERE
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 RIBE-—NFERIZIEE
+-_B=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R-_E—NF—H—H-
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 E-nEF+ZA=1+—H-
“E2IZF—F—HK
_ECEF+_BA=1+—H 4,000,000 400,000
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 39. FEIER TS
The details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that GEERFERERZAEEFLEWE

have material non-controlling interests shown as below:

AR ZFBIIRAT

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests
principal and voting rights held
place of by non-controlling Loss allocated Accumulated
Name of business interests to non-controlling non-controlling
Subsidiary MLt ES JEERERRFEZ interests interests
LRy YNSIEY FEEMEL FREREGERIRFELLS SEFIFERERSE RetIFiEmREzR
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIEE —E-NEF ZEBEITE —Z-NEF ZEBITE —Z—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHE7T FHxT FHET
AR SR EREE PRC/PRC
BRRE RElHE
(a5 =) 40% 40% (698) (19) 3,826 4,289
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
BERIFERER
ERIIEE KM E AT (279) (211 350 660
(977) (230) 4,176 4,949
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)  39. FE¥ER I (&

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the EREBEARIFERERZAEBEZNE
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests NEZMEFHFERHINMT U THE
are set out below. The summarised financial information below MHRENAEBRERN R BMIEHEA 2B EE

represented amounts before intragroup eliminations.

As at 31 December R+—-B=+—H
CIRSEES ]
2020 2019
—EZEF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,346 23
Current assets RENEE 211,223 74,481
Current liabilities GIEI=NE (206,560) (67,143)
6,009 7,361
Equity attributable to FN/NEIEZZ= DN
owners of the Company FE{L R 2,183 3,072
Non-controlling interest R R 3,826 4,289
6,009 7,361
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)  39. FEIER#ExE (&)

For the year ended 31 December HE+_-_B=1+—HL=EE
AiBEERF
2020 2019
= e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Revenue & 984,666 508,799
Other income HAa A 1,651 57
Expenses S (988,062) (508,909)
Loss for the year FEEIR (1,745) (53)
Other comprehensive expenses FEHEME2EEEH
for the year 393 (116)
Total comprehensive expenses FE2EMZ HERE
for the year (1,352) (169)
Loss attributable to: FE(LESIE -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSTEZZ DN (1,047) (34)
Non-controlling interests FEER R (698) (19)
(1,745) (53)
Total comprehensive expenses R HABRE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBHEEB A (811) (104)
Non-controlling interests iR (541) (65)
(1,352) (169)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from: KEUTERIEZ
WERA (RH) F%E .
Operating activities KEEH 162,943 (4,025)
Investing activities SI=Prtd) (944) -
Financing activities MEEE (172) 1,473
Net cash inflow/(outflow) WA (W) B8 161,827 (2,552)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZEF+"_HA=+—HItFE

40. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease income under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as

40.

A=A
EEEERHEA
R|ERF AEBREFBENEZ R

SEHEERN ETIRBZ R KRER
BWA:

follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF  —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 17,819 -
In the second to fifth years inclusive FIEFHF OEEERT 13,363 -
31,182 -

Operating lease income represent rentals receivable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed over the
relevant lease term.

41. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Mandatory provident scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”)

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the rules
and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance after the implementation of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately in an independently managed fund. The Group
has followed the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income with a
cap of HK$1,500 (2019: HK$1,500) per employee per month. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as incurred. The are
no forfeited contribution for both years.

41.

KEREWABEEERERAZYXRE
WZzHEE HONZRECHEHBEE R FEIM
FowEEEBERNESE -

BREFETE
Rl ARE 8 (EEEsE)

REfEARESERGABEITR &R
ERBERGIMERABEESTENFRG 2 R RR
PIRIBAREE -BREEHEZEE >
BDoRARBLEEREESAR A c&EEE
BIREZEHEMRE MaEREESR
BB ASHIEL MR LIRAERETE
B1,500# 7t (ZZ— % : 1,5008 7T) © it
MR EERRBEZIR mEFEHER
W R BYIE N ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZEZE_-_ZE_ZTE+_HB=+—HILFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with related parties

Save for disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

(@  During the year, the Group received commission income
and other securities dealing income from securities
and futures dealing of approximately HK$49,000 (2019:
HK$16,000) from a director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun (2019: a
director, Nam Kwok Lun).

(b) During the year, the Group received commission
income and other income from securities dealing of
approximately HK$17,000 (2019: HK$7,000) from Asia Tele-
Net, in which two directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and
Nam Kwok Lun, have controlling interests.

(c) At 31 December 2020, a director, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun, advanced approximately HK$57,851,000 (2019:
HK$57,897,000) to the Group. During the year, the Group
paid finance costs of HK$2,614,000 (2019: HK$3,237,000)
to the director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

(d At 31 December 2020, a director, Dr. Hui Chi Ming,
advanced approximately HK$85,727,000 (2019:
HK$57,395,000) to the Group. It is unsecured, repayable on
demand and non-interest bearing.

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
made minimum lease payments under operating leases in
respect of office premises of approximately HK$2,520,000
(2019: HK$2,520,000) to Gahood Holding Company
Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui
Chi Ming, a director of the Company. The transaction also
constitutes a continuing connected transaction under
Appendix 14A of the Listing Rules.

42.

ZEGRAMBREREMEOMRES
AEEZBEALRZNT

RAEERN z&%lﬁﬁ%&ﬂﬂi’fi‘f
B REFEEMLE (CTT—
F . —REFEBMBLEE) LI&HM%@
WA K ELAth 28 %5 B & A 4949,000%8
7T (ZZ—N%E 16,0008 7T) ©

HAKEEFEW AEBEMRESEE

DR MEESERERERE
B i S LE A H L fl i m) WA=
WA K E AU A %917,0008 7T (ZF
— L% 1 7,000%7T) °

A ZEZTFE+A=+—H E=F
BRI MR o A M A B B3R 4957,851,000
BT (ZE—LE 57,897,000 7T) °
FROAEBBERERMBRESNS
BT B FE2,614,0008 7T (ZB—HE .
3,237,000587T) °

B ETE+_A=+—H>
ESFEHRBELIREAEERRRN
85,727,000 Tt (Z&— & :
57,395,000787T) - ZEBM A ER
W REREBERFFTE-

HE_Z-ZF+_A=+—HILF
B> AEERMAEYELERNH
ANBEEHEHRIELTHEEER
Bz AERERADXNVRERE
{7 492,520,0008 7T (ZE—NF :
2,520,000 7T) ° ZIER ZINMER £
HAMIERAAIE N 2 I ERIER S o
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42.

tRE MR R MY EE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continuead)

() At 31 December 2020, the Group advanced
HK$55,500,000 (2019: HK$49,000,000) from related
company, PAL Finance Limited (“"PAL"), in which two
directors of the Company, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and
Nam Kwok Lun, having controlling interest. During the
year, the Group paid finance costs in total of HK$3,050,000
(2019: HK2,927,000) to PAL.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors during the year were as follows:

42.

FEALRS (@)

MEANLRS (B

RZZ_EE+"A=+—H &&
[ FE IR BE 3 A B) 22 ) m%ﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬂ
8 (MMt GLAEmMAESE

Bt REE G HE xR )
Z E 455,500,000 70 (ZB— N EF
49,000,000 7T) o FR > REEZTF
T2 B E A& 723,050,000
BT (CE—NE ©2927,000/87T) °

=

FTEEIEBEASZEHM

2020 2019

—EB-%FF T NHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEx FAT

Short-term benefits reHAEd 10,006 9,733
Post-employment benefits BRIRER 105 90
10,111 9,823

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EEMeHFNZETRENALTZRR
RHEBBETE -
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43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

43. MEBEFRSFMEEZBRZHR

TRV FEBMEIBEEZEEZ
25 (ORREERIFRCEY) -MEDD
FRTEEZ BRI BETRKRERAEBER
GREMBRDVELAXRERELIHNERES

=
TME ©

Amount
Lease due to Corporate Convertible
liabilities Directors bonds bonds Borrowings Total
HERE  ENESHE ARES RRES &8 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER FET TER
At 1 January 2019 RZE—HE—B—H 1377 85,491 19,560 104,055 320,530 531,013
Changes from financing HERERELY
cash flows
Additions A - 20,564 8,000 - 99,000 127,564
Interest paid BEFE (218) - - - (23,715) (23933)
Redemption/Repayments LA Eg=t (2,507) (101,983) (116,021) (220511)
Other changes: Hitgs :
New leases entered BEEEE! 6903 6,903
Exchange adjustments EREE @ - - - - @
Interest expenses FEME 218 3,237 2,061 - 25,116 30,632
Gain on early redemption of RABOTHRRESZ
convertible bonds WiE (2,072) - (2,072)
At 31 December 2019 and RIE-AF+2A
1 January 2020 =t+-BRIZIZE
—A—H 5,769 109,292 29,621 - 304,910 449 592
Changes from financing RERERELH
cash flows
Additions B - 31,672 - - 146,869 178,541
Interest paid BAFE (266) - (1,781) - (18,272) (20,319)
Redemption/Repayments B/ (2,569) - - (69,500) (72,069)
Other changes: Hithgg .
New leases entered BEEE) 846 - 846
Exchange adjustments ERAE 38 - - - 3,969 4,007
Interest expenses FIERZ 266 2614 233 - 27,106 3232
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZE
+ZB=+—-H 4,084 143,578 30,176 - 395,082 572,920
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44.

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

44. FEMB AT

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Name
et

Karl Thomson
Financial Group Limited
SEEHEEERAT

Karl-Thomson Securities
Company Limited
BiEESERAE

Karl-Thomson Commodities
Company Limited
BEEMBEERAT

Karl Thomson
Finance Limited

BiEMHEERAT

Karl Thomson Credit Limited
SEEHEBRAT

Karl Thomson Investment
Consultants Limited

BEREEMBRAT

Country/
place of
incorporation
Bt
HR/ 8%

British Viirgin
Islands ("BVI")
RBRUBE
(EBRES)
Hong Kong
i
Hong Kong
&8
Hong Kong

]

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong

Principal
place of
business

TREENY

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

A

Hong Kong

&A

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

TR EER AN EAERARENEESR
EBREZARATNBAT - é%;m,
RHAMMBARZFBEECRBBNTT

Eo
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ nominal value of
registered capital issued share capital
BETK held by the Group
BRks/ rEERE
HRMER ERTRAAELH
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-NE
% %
AAL Bl
HK$10 100 100
1087
HK$11,000,000 100 100
11,000,000% 7
HK$5,000,000 100 100
5,000,000 7T
HK$20,000,000 100 100
20,000,000%7¢
HK$10,000 100 100
10,000 7T
HK$5,000,000 100 100
5,000,000 75
BREEREEBRAR

Principal activities
TEER

Investment holding

REER

Securities dealing
and broking
EFEEREL

Futures and
options broking
PERBRELS

Securities margin
financing
FARELHE

Money lending

%8

Broking of mutual funds
andinsurance-linked
investment plans
and products

LEES RFpHN
REFEIREDLL
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44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44. T EMBAT #E)
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Country/ share capital/ nominal value of
place of Principal registered capital issued share capital
incorporation place of BETR held by the Group
Name SR AL business BERE/ rEERE Principal activities
&7 X/ TEEEME HRER ERTRAEELA  TEEE
2020 2019
ZB2%F 2%
% %

[ BAK

Karl Thomson Financial Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$600,000 51 51 Corporate finance advisory
Aavisory Limited

BEREREERAT &4 5E 600,000 7¢ X BB

Hong Kong Finance Energy BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Trading in natural resources
International Trading HERYHE s 100%7T FAERES
Company Limited

Hong Kong Finance Resource BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Group Limited

A ARERBRAT EERYHEE B8 100E 7T RERR

Shiny Future Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding

BAEEBRAH 55 5E 1008 7T REER

Hong Kong Finance Universal BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Group Limited

BEREENRASEBRAT  EBEZEE s 100E7T RERR

Madagascar Northern Petroleum BVI Madagascar US$100 100 100 Qil and gas exploration
Company Limited and production

SEMEMLARRBRAR EBRUEE BEMEM 100% 7T BARERARERRLE

Zhen Hua Company Limited Kenya Kenya KES100,000 60 60 Minerals exploration and

production
REBRAT BEEZ BT 100,008 B2 7% BEMRRRLE
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44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44,
Issued and

fully paid

Country/ share capital/

place of Principal registered capital

incorporation place of BETR

Name SmA business BRERE/
a8 R/ e FTEEENY HRER
Societe Hoteliere Tananarivienne Madagascar Madagascar MGA600,000,000
600,000,000

EEmHm EEMEM SEMEM

MEGE

TRENEE PRC PRC RMB22,000,000
GEREBRLE H I AR 22,000,0007¢
ElheE e PRC PRC RMBS5,000,000
H ) A #5,000,0007T

EREBREFE PRC PRC RMB100,000,000
REBRAR s I A #100,000,0007%

The Company directly holds the interest in Karl Thomson
Financial Group Limited and Hong Kong Finance Resource
Group Limited. All other subsidiaries shown above are indirectly
held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
end of the year or at any time during the year.

* Wholly foreign owned enterprises

*x Private Limited Liability companies

FEMRBAR (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEEEE Principal activities
BRTRAAELA TEER
2020 2019
ZB2%F 2%
% %
Aatt BAL

100 100 Property holding
NERE

100 100 Property investment
MELE

60 60 Trading of electronic products
BEfERER

100 100 Property investment
WERE

ARRERFESEETMERARATRK
ERATHEEREEERAR ZEm ML
METAEEMMB AR Z @R HERE [
BRFAR

RAEFEERFERERERERE HELQ
B EA AR AREEZEHES-

* SNEEERE

> FAABRRAF
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45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

Issuance of convertible bonds

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 9 July
2021, the Company issued 2% coupon convertible bonds
with principal amount of HK$20,000,000 matured on 9
July 2023 for a cash of HK$20,000,000 as general working
capital of the Group.

Detail of issuance of convertible bonds, together with
the completion of the issuance of convertible bonds, are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 7 June
2021, 30 June 2021 and 20 July 2021 respectively.

Disposal of Millhaven Holdings Limited

On 5 November 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of the entire issued share capital of Millhaven
Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, for a cash consideration of HK$338,000,000 (the
“Disposal”). The Disposal constitutes a major transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules
but the Disposal is not subject to shareholders’ approval
as Dr. Hui Chi Ming and his associates, who together
hold 53.49% of the issued share capital of the Company,
have given a written approval for the Disposal. At the
date of the report, the Disposal is not yet completed but
a non-refundable deposit of HK$8,000,000 was received.
Detail of the Disposal are disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 11 November 2021.

Up to the date of authorised of this interim report, the
Disposal has not yet completed.

45. |/

(a)

(b)

HARF1H
BITRIAR (ST

RBEPEFRE ARBER T —
FEtAAHBETR _ZEZ=5+tA
N B EHZ &% %8420,000,0007 7T
2% ZEE MK ES > UREERE
20,000,000 T1EA R EBRMB—HFE
BEEEo

BRETAMRESZFIE ER %
TRMRESFZTERIER DAl E
RAABHBAZZ_—FAt
A "A=+tArk=-%
T —FtRZH+HZRM

i £ Millhaven Holdings
Limited

RIE_—F+—ARH AEEHHE
—ZBUBE=FIULEBEEHE N
HEXABEEMN B A SMillhaven
Holdings Limitedfy & 28 B 8 17 §&
&> DU ERIR £ 18338,000,00078 7T
(THESE) - HEFHEBERAR
SR EHRAEUEBE TN —IEE
ARG HHERBEZAESKREIL
B BHRTEHRIELREBEAS
HIFBEAR QB BETRAMS3.49%
KEERHESTBEHERME R
REHH HEEEEXRTRESI
B R e] R 3ZE 1% £8,000,0008 7T © B A
HESBEBZHEBRENRARQARHA
R-_EB-—F+—B+—Bzrfic
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

45. SREHAEREIE (&)

(c) Subscription of new ordinary shares of (c) REEATMERER

the Company

On 19 November 2021, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which 200,000,000
new ordinary shares of the Company would be issued
to an independent third party at the subscription price
of HK$0.127 per share. The maximum number of shares
issued under the subscription agreement represent 5.00%
of the existing issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the subscription agreement and approximately
4.76% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the issue and allotment of the subscription
shares. The entire net proceeds from the subscription
of new shares, are intended to be raised additional
funding for general working capital to support the future
development of the Group and repayment of liabilities.
Details of the subscription are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 November 2021.

On 22 December 2021, the subscription agreement was
terminated. Details of the termination of the subscription
of shares are disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 22 December 2021.

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED ¢ ZHE?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 "ZF+_F=+—HIFE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 46. AT ZEAFEIRRER

THE COMPANY

2020 2019
=B=%fF T OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investment in subsidiaries RB AR ZKE 539,830 539,830
539,830 539,830
Current assets MBIEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a)  FEWT B AT BRI (Hf5ta) 1,486,043 1,485,947
Other amounts receivable, HhEUWERR BB RIERIZS
prepayments and deposits 56 56
Bank balances (general accounts) RITHEEF (—RERP) RIRE
and cash 29 167
1,486,128 1,486,170
Current liabilities mEAaE
Amount due to subsidiaries (note a) BB RBRIE (fta) 554,071 554,101
Other payables and accrued expenses HnE AL EE B 12,538 4,795
Amount due to Directors (note b) FETEERIB (BaEh) 58,091 44,258
Corporate bonds NEMES 11,535 -
Borrowings =yt 264,744 255,910
900,979 859,064
Net current assets MEBIEERE 585,149 627,106
Total assets less current liabilities HEEERTHERE 1,124,979 1,166,936
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Corporate bonds NEES 17,698 28,048
17,698 28,048
Net assets BEEFE 1,107,281 1,138,888
Capital and reserves B 7S e fré
Share capital [N 400,000 400,000
Reserves (rote ¢) & (Matc) 707,281 738,888
Total equity HEmARER 1,107,281 1,138,888
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved ARBZMBRRER S _—F+—"H
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 +-HEZEZSHERTETIE, TR
December 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: THREEZE
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, cBs,, JP Mr. Cao Yu
FFEstEcss, ip BFLEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
- BZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘e TR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_FF+_H=+—HIEEE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 46. AT ZEBIER AR &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: Bist -
(@  The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, and (@) e () i@ ABRIBEA BRI R ERIEE
recoverable/(repayable) on demand. Kiglel,” (EiE) ©
(b) The amount due to Directors are unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong (b) EAESRIBARIEE RIRTARNEERE
Prime Rate quoted by Bank (2019: Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank) BHE CE-NF  RITMBNEERESH
per annum and are repayable on demand. X) BEFERBREREER
() Movement in reserves (c) REE
Capital
Share  Contributed redemption Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
BRAD A1 BB BXBERHE REtE518 af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZIZ2—hE—HA—H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 (1,184,494) 771,441
Loss and total FEBEEKEZESZH
comprehensive “ags
expenses for the year - - - (32,553) (32,553)
At 31 December 2019 RIZE—N%F
and at 1 January 2020 + ﬁ +—HR®
—EZTEF—F—H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 (1,217,047) 738,888
Loss and total FEBEEEZESZH
comprehensive 4REE
expenses for the year - - - (31,607) (31,607)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZE
+—-B=+—H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 (1,248,654) 707,281
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Five Years Financial Summary
L FMBHNE

Year ended 31 December
HEE+-_HA=+—HLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-RF 22—t ZZ—N\F ZZ2-NF ZTIETH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TFHET TFHET TFAET FAT

RESULTS E4
Revenue s 31,329 97,065 942,475 538,006 1,013,168

(Loss)/Profit before taxation B&IRAET
(B518) /HEH) (39,609) 94,478 253,301 930,436 (251,346)
Taxation wiE 673 (31,896) (73,665) (252,953) 38,429

(Loss)/Profit for the year FEREER
from continuing £E (B8
operations A (38,936) 62,582 179,636 677,483 (212,917)

Profit /(Loss) for the year — BARIEKEEFR

from discontinued FEEERN,
operation (F18) 42,081 (100,079) (20,905) - -
Profit /(Loss) for the year — FEE&EF, (B518) 3,145 (37,497) 158,731 677,483 (212,917)

(Loss)/earning per share =88 (&518) &7

From continuing and FRERREER R
discontinued operations B4R IR XS
— Basic —EAK HK$(0.0026) HK$0.0046 HK$0.0455 HK$0.1694  HK$(0.0530)

(0.0026)787c 00046787t 0045587t  0.1694%87T (0.0530)%87T

From continuing operations 54845 # 5%
- Basic —E7& HK$(0.0027)  HK$0.0246 HK$0.0514 HK$0.1694  HK$(0.0530)
(0.0027)787c 0024687t 0051487t  0.1694%87T (0.0530)%87T
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Five Years Financial Summary

hFMHE

As at 31 December

W+=ZB=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZIEREFE IE—+tF ZZ-N\FE ZE-NF ZEBEZZHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET FHET FTET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERE&E

Total assets BEEE 1,350,270 1,655,970 4,033,416 4,672,065 4,975,812
Total liabilities BE4%E (445,863) (797,611) (963,645) (999,740) (1,279,182)
904,407 858,359 3,069,771 3,672,325 3,696,630

Equity attributable to ENNETEZE SN
owners of the Company FE{LRE =S 771,836 836,492 3,066,684 3,667,376 3,692,454
Non-controlling interests ~ FEIEG#E % 132,571 21,867 3,087 4,949 4,176
Total equity HEmARER 904,407 858,359 3,069,771 3,672,325 3,696,630
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